          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          8  (Held Jointly With)

             COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          9           - And-

             COMMITTEE ON WOMEN'S ISSUES

         10

             -------------------------------x

         11

                            October 14, 2004

         12                 Start:  10:22 a.m.

                            Recess: 1:14 p.m.

         13

                            City Hall

         14                 Council Chambers

                            New York, New York

         15

         16       B E F O R E:

         17              BILL DeBLASIO

                         Chairperson, General Welfare Committee

         18

                         CHRISTINE QUINN

         19              Chairperson, Health Committee

         20              TRACY BOYLAND

                         Chairperson, Women's Issues Committee

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             COUNCIL MEMBERS:

          4

          5  Bill Perkins

             Christine Quinn

          6  Gale Brewer

             Larry Seabrook

          7  Jose Serrano

             Annabel Palma

          8  Philip Reed Yvette Clarke

             Helen Sears

          9  Kendall Stewart

             James Oddo

         10  Diana Reyna

             Oliver Koppell

         11  Sara Gonzalez

             Speaker Miller

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Thomas R. Frieden, M.D., M.P.H.

          4  Commissioner

             NYC Department of Health and Mental Hygiene

          5

             Wilfredo Lopez

          6  General Counsel for Health

             NYC Department of Health and Mental Hygiene

          7

             Elliot Marcus

          8  Assistant Commissioner

             NYC Department of Health and Mental Hygiene

          9

             John Mattingly

         10  Commissioner

             Administration for Children's Services

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            4

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, HEALTH, WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Good morning.

          3  This joint Committee hearing of the General Welfare

          4  Committee hearing, the Health Committee and the

          5  Committee on Women's Issues is called to order.

          6                 I think everyone in this room knows

          7  that we're dealing with an extremely serious and

          8  difficult topic today. We've in the last weeks and

          9  months some very tragic circumstances, and the

         10  purpose today is to constructively look at how we

         11  can go forward.

         12                 I think we all are trying to

         13  understand some of what's happened in these last

         14  weeks, but more importantly, we're trying to

         15  understand how we go forward as a City and do

         16  better.

         17                 I would say at the beginning it's

         18  appropriate to acknowledge and thank some of our

         19  special guests who are here today. I want to

         20  acknowledge the parents of Matthew Perilli, and

         21  thank them for being here to hear this hearing, and

         22  thank Council Member Melinda Katz, who has been

         23  working so closely with them. In a moment we'll turn

         24  to my fellow chairs, Christine Quinn and Tracy

         25  Boyland, but let me just say, again, I think we need
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          2  to be very serious today and sober about looking for

          3  solutions.

          4                 The system of providing child care in

          5  this City, as the General Welfare Committee has been

          6  working for the last three years, is one that there

          7  are many, many positive features to this system, but

          8  there are many problems, an extremely complex

          9  system. Hopefully over time we can make it less

         10  complex. It's a system in need of greater resources,

         11  that goes without saying.

         12                 But I do think in these last years,

         13  both in the Council and in the Administration,

         14  there's been a growing focus on child care, that is

         15  for the good.

         16                 And certainly the many advocates, the

         17  many service providers, have been a part of that,

         18  and we thank them for that.

         19                 I think now is the moment we have to

         20  do even better.

         21                 I want to welcome, just say at the

         22  outset I want to welcome Commissioner Mattingly.

         23  This is his first hearing as our new ACS

         24  Commissioner. I want to welcome him to the role.

         25  I'll say the obvious, I'm sorry this has to be the
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          2  topic of the first hearing, but I do think I want to

          3  thank you and I think all the members of the

          4  Committee feel this, for the way you've handled your

          5  first weeks on the job, and for your openness in

          6  dealing with us, and we very much appreciate the

          7  work you've done around the country leading to this

          8  role, and we welcome you. Welcome Commissioner

          9  Frieden, as well. We'll just say on a personal note

         10  that I appreciate the forthrightness for which

         11  you've dealt with this recent crisis.

         12                 I believe we're going to be joined by

         13  the Public Advocate shortly, who has also done some

         14  very important work on this issue. And I think in

         15  addition to the oversight work we're doing today,

         16  and legislation that has been introduced as of

         17  yesterday, yesterday Council Member Katz introduced

         18  legislation, I introduced legislation to try and

         19  take additional steps on providing information to

         20  parents. I'm sure that will be discussed during the

         21  course of this hearing. But I also want to say that

         22  all of us are dedicated to ensuring that it's not

         23  just one hearing and that's it - it's about

         24  legislation, it's about budget, it's about

         25  follow-up, oversight hearing, a whole package of
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          2  steps to make sure that the Administration and the

          3  Council, the advocates, everyone is working together

          4  to improve this system.

          5                 I also just want to acknowledge our

          6  colleagues who are here. Council Member James Oddo,

          7  and Council Member Annabel Palma, Council Member

          8  Larry Seabrook, and Council Member Oliver Koppell.

          9  And, oh, we have been joined by the Speaker. I'm

         10  sorry, Mr. Speaker, I didn't see you.

         11                 Would you like to take a moment? Now

         12  I'd like to take a moment to welcome the Speaker of

         13  the City Council, and thank him, in particular, for

         14  the work he has been doing consistently on

         15  children's issues.

         16                 SPEAKER MILLER: Thank you. Mr.

         17  Chairman, thank you. And of course, Chairwoman

         18  Boyland and Chairwoman Quinn, my colleagues in the

         19  Council. Commissioner, thank you for being here and

         20  for being willing to come and be open about the

         21  problems that the Department is facing and that need

         22  to be fixed. We appreciate it.

         23                 We were obviously brought here today

         24  by an unspeakable tragedy, the death of a

         25  seven-month-old baby boy, and as a parent with one
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          2  child still in day care, every day that I go to work

          3  there's a little part of me that fears the phone

          4  call that the Perilli's received, but I can't even

          5  imagine what it must be like to actually get that

          6  phone call. It's too much to bear. And what's

          7  particularly appalling about this particular tragedy

          8  is the Perilli's were parents who did everything

          9  right. They went on the Internet, they researched,

         10  they checked licenses, they met with the provider,

         11  and they believed they were entrusting their child

         12  to someone who was trustworthy, and who certainly

         13  appeared trustworthy. And unfortunately, the

         14  provider and the system failed the Perilli's in this

         15  case.

         16                 In particular, I think the system

         17  failed the Perilli's by not giving them enough

         18  information. They had a right to know things that

         19  they weren't told. They had a right to know that the

         20  provider was running an unlicensed center; a right

         21  to know that the provider was at one point

         22  understaffed, and we knew it. And the questions I

         23  think of this hearing are not so much to determine

         24  only what went wrong in this case, but more

         25  importantly to ensure that no other children are

                                                            9

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, HEALTH, WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  lost because our inspectors aren't trained properly,

          3  or there aren't enough of them, or the system is not

          4  gauged towards being able to give the information to

          5  parents and providers that are needed.

          6                 And I want to say that having met

          7  with the Perilli's, I appreciate the extraordinary

          8  generosity of their time and their spirit, focusing

          9  on that end, ensuring that this doesn't happen again

         10  is a positive, a positive approach, which is heroic

         11  in a certain sense, in the face of this kind of

         12  tragedy. So, I personally appreciate that.

         13                 And I also want to say that I think

         14  this Council, I know this Council is committed to

         15  taking whatever steps are necessary, but I know that

         16  part of that also means that making sure that we

         17  have more quality day care available to working

         18  parents, that part of the solution to this is making

         19  more quality opportunities available to children,

         20  and to working parents. And, in fact, this Council

         21  has spent the last three years, or our tenure here

         22  at this Council, working extraordinarily hard to

         23  expand day care options for parents, quality day

         24  care options for parents.

         25                 During the worst fiscal crisis this
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          2  City has ever faced, we've added how many thousand

          3  day care slots, Bill?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Three-thousand

          5  two years ago.

          6                 SPEAKER MILLER: Yes, and then another

          7  --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: An additional

          9  2,000 in this last --

         10                 SPEAKER MILLER: Yes, at least 5,000

         11  day care slots we've added in the worst fiscal

         12  crisis this City has ever faced because we know that

         13  as bad as our fiscal crisis is, every working parent

         14  faces a crisis when trying to find appropriate

         15  options for their children.

         16                 And, so, what we need are stronger

         17  regulations to ensure that parents know the

         18  information that they deserve to know, but parents

         19  also need to find appropriate options for their

         20  children, and that's a delicate and difficult

         21  balance to strike. I'm confident that working with

         22  the Department of Health, Administration for

         23  Children's Services, and the other agencies that are

         24  involved in that, that this Council can strike that

         25  balance, and I want to thank my colleagues here on
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          2  the Council, and, again, thank the Perillis for

          3  their generosity of spirit and for working towards

          4  our common goal, which is to ensure that no parents

          5  in this City ever have to go through such an

          6  unspeakable tragedy again.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and

          8  Chairwomen.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         10  much, Mr. Speaker. And we really appreciate that

         11  you've taken the time to join us on this issue.

         12                 I would like to introduce my

         13  colleague, Chair of the Health Committee, Council

         14  Member Christine Quinn.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you very

         16  much, Mr. Chair, and Mr. Speaker.

         17                 I, too, want to thank the Perillis

         18  very much for being with us today. As the Speaker

         19  said, I think it is truly a tremendous amount or

         20  courage that you're demonstrating being with us here

         21  today and being so outspoken and such advocates for

         22  reforms in the system, since your terrible tragedy.

         23                 As Chairperson DeBlasio said, we are

         24  here today to get more information about how this

         25  tragedy occurred and to begin to move forward, so
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          2  nothing like this could ever happen again, and to

          3  come up with a very clear set of steps and actions

          4  that we in the Council, that the Bloomberg

          5  Administration, that the Advocacy community, that

          6  the provider community, that all of us together need

          7  to take over the next few months to make sure that

          8  nothing like this happens again, to make sure we

          9  have the funds that we need to have the number of

         10  inspectors that we need to go out and check, day

         11  care providers, to make sure we're spending the

         12  money that we have, to make sure that the inspector

         13  lines are full, and that the people who do these

         14  jobs are well trained and have the technology they

         15  need to be able to fully identify problems quickly

         16  and monitor whether those problems are remedied by

         17  the provider.

         18                 We also need, in addition to what

         19  we're going to do in the budget, and internally

         20  within our City agencies, come up with a united

         21  agenda that we will take to Albany to make sure that

         22  the State is fully our partner in this effort, and

         23  that they are doing all they can to make sure

         24  nothing like this happens again.

         25                 And we also need to, out of today's
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          2  hearing, look at the other models we have in the

          3  Health Department and in Government models where

          4  people are easily able to access information about

          5  entities with which they interact.

          6                 If you look at the Department of

          7  Health restaurant inspection model, it is one where

          8  consumers are very able to find out what the status

          9  is of restaurants in their neighborhood. Do they

         10  have violations? Have they been solved? How serious

         11  are those violations? If we can have a model that is

         12  that efficient for restaurants, there is no excuse

         13  for us not to have as equally a user-friendly and

         14  child protecting and saving model for day care, for

         15  kids and for their parents who are struggling so

         16  hard to find safe places for their kids to go.

         17                 I also hope that as we move forward

         18  we remember that many, most, most of the day care

         19  providers out there are people who actually care

         20  deeply about children and want to provide a quality

         21  service. And for some of them, they will need help

         22  and technical assistance from government to meet the

         23  standards, and we need to add into our action plan

         24  and our agenda what those steps and resources are

         25  that agencies need the technical assistance to make
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          2  sure they can be the best place and remain in

          3  neighborhoods as resources for parents and kids.

          4                 But as was said by Chair DeBlasio, I

          5  want to thank the agencies for being so forthright

          6  and direct in the process, and in responding to this

          7  tragedy. And I believe that as that dialogue

          8  continues and we all work together, we will be able

          9  to achieve the changes we need in the structure and

         10  through that we will honor the bravery of the

         11  Perilli family and honor the memory of their son as

         12  we make sure this never happens again.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         15  Chair Quinn. I'd like to introduce my colleague,

         16  Chair Tracy Boyland, of the Women's Issues

         17  Committee.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you.

         19  Good morning.

         20                 As Chair of the Women's Issues

         21  Committee, I would like to welcome all of those

         22  hearing this issue today, the General Welfare

         23  Committee, and the Health Committee, and commend my

         24  co-chairs for their continued work on this issue.

         25                 The death of a baby boy in a group
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          2  family day care home in Queens is obviously very

          3  troubling, and I know that many of us are wondering,

          4  do we have to wait until someone else passes before

          5  we raise this issue, and the answer is no. But let

          6  us use this opportunity to make sure that the

          7  child's death, the Perilli child's death, is not in

          8  vain.

          9                 I would like to commend the

         10  Department of Health for their candor and speed in

         11  responding to this tragedy. Their publication on the

         12  report on the Bureau of Day Care is an important

         13  first step in understanding the problems of the

         14  oversight in New York City Day Care facilities.

         15                 But we still have more questions

         16  about the issue of training, license renewal and

         17  even more. We need to find some of the information

         18  in determining the Department's plan to revamp the

         19  operations of the Bureau of Day Care.

         20                 And to the Perilli Family, I would

         21  just like to say, as a mother of a small child, I

         22  understand visiting child care facilities. I

         23  understand going back and forth to check records. I

         24  understand leaving your most precious commodity to

         25  be entrusted in the hands of someone, as my husband
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          2  and I are going through that process right now, and

          3  the biggest fear, obviously, is the fear that we're

          4  dealing with today. So, this is a very personal

          5  issue for me, and when the Speaker speaks about

          6  having letters of violation sent, I think that would

          7  be obviously very helpful, as, you know, we look

          8  through and we inspect child care facilities to

          9  really understand the philosophy and ideology of

         10  that caretaker.

         11                 So, our prayers and condolences

         12  obviously go out to the Perilli family, and I hope

         13  that this hearing begins to take a first step to

         14  answer some questions for you, as well as answer

         15  questions for other parents within New York City.

         16                 So, thank you, Perilli family.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         18  much, Chair Boyland.

         19                 I will just say for a brief moment,

         20  at every hearing of this Committee and the other

         21  Committees, we send out notice several weeks in

         22  advance, and we request all the relevant witnesses

         23  to come in, and starting with, we always lead our

         24  hearings with the government agencies involved.

         25                 I again thank these two commissioners
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          2  who have extremely busy schedules for coming and

          3  giving their time, but unfortunately today we're not

          4  able to say the same about the leading official at

          5  the state level, who is relevant to this work.

          6                 I know Speaker Miller wants to note

          7  that fact.

          8                 SPEAKER MILLER: Yes.

          9                 Mr. Chairman, let me just say that

         10  first of all, I want to thank the Commissioners for

         11  coming, and, again for the openness with which

         12  you've approached this. I think it's precisely the

         13  sort of spirit in which we have to approach this

         14  kind of a tragedy.

         15                 Let me say how outraged I am that the

         16  Office of Children and Family Services hasn't sent

         17  even a representative to this hearing. This is the

         18  lead regulatory agency with regard to this matter in

         19  the State of New York. This is the agency that is

         20  ultimately responsible for the well-being of

         21  children in the City of New York and across this

         22  State.

         23                 They were invited several weeks ago

         24  to come to this hearing. They have declined to show

         25  up and have said they're going to send written
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          2  testimony but we haven't received it.

          3                 I don't care whether they send

          4  written testimony or not, I want to know how many

          5  unspeakable tragedies have to occur before they're

          6  willing to come and sit before the people of this

          7  City and explain what it is that they're doing to

          8  stop them.

          9                 It is, I don't have words for it. I'm

         10  shocked. I know we had a hearing once before on the

         11  child care issue and the OCFS didn't show up. Well,

         12  I'm not surprised that the State would turn a deaf

         13  ear previously, but after a tragedy of this

         14  proportion, I assume that they had some shame, or

         15  some level of human feeling, and I am truly at a

         16  loss for words that they could possibly think that

         17  there's something better that they could be doing

         18  today than to come and answer some questions about

         19  what happened and what they're doing to ensure that

         20  it doesn't happen again.

         21                 So, I hope that -- it's not too late,

         22  it's 20 to 11:00, and we'll probably be here for

         23  awhile, so if Commissioner Johnson would like to get

         24  on the phone with somebody in his agency, and send

         25  them over here so they can answer some basic
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          2  questions about what they're going to do to ensure

          3  the regulatory framework in this City, which they

          4  are ultimately responsible for, to go and prove it's

          5  not too late, but this is stuffening. Literally I'm

          6  stunned, and extraordinarily outraged.

          7                 So, thank you for that, Mr. Chairman.

          8  And I hope that the State gets it together very

          9  quickly, because this is unacceptable.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         11  much, Mr. Speaker. I assure you every member of all

         12  of these committees shares your frustration, and I

         13  think we should talk about how we can aggressively

         14  follow up with our State colleagues to make sure

         15  this does not happen again.

         16                 I'd like to offer an opportunity to

         17  Council Member Katz to say a few words.

         18                 I want to thank her for being a part

         19  of the planning of this hearing. I want to thank her

         20  for the support she has provided the Perilli family,

         21  and thank her for the legislation she introduced

         22  yesterday.

         23                 Council Member Melinda Katz.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I also would

         25  like to obviously thank the Chairs DeBlasio, Quinn
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          2  and Boyland, for getting this hearing together so

          3  quickly, and I would like to thank the Commissioner,

          4  as well. As the Speaker said, he's been extremely

          5  open and I will tell you that on the Friday when

          6  they actually made the report, he was on the phone

          7  with me to my house to make sure that the Council

          8  had all of the appropriate information, and I do

          9  appreciate that. And I also appreciate that he's

         10  listening to all of us speak, and I think that

         11  that's an important concept here so that you can

         12  understand where this Council is coming from so in

         13  the future we can work together.

         14                 Very briefly, I would also like to

         15  welcome Vincent and Maria Perilli to our Chambers.

         16  Unfortunately, they are in the people's house under

         17  some horrible circumstances. I want you to know,

         18  everyone that is here today, the type of folks these

         19  parents are.

         20                 From the day their seven-month-old

         21  child died, they were on the phone to my office with

         22  one thing in mind, one thing alone, they wanted to

         23  make sure that this couldn't happen to any other

         24  kids. And that was their main goal, and that was

         25  from day one. That was before the media, that was

                                                            21

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, HEALTH, WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  before the pictures, that was before anything had

          3  happened. They contacted us, they wanted to make

          4  sure it would never happen again, and I think they

          5  are extraordinary individuals, and I want to thank

          6  them for coming here today.

          7                 They have chosen not to testify. They

          8  have chosen to listen to the Commissioner's

          9  testimony. I will read a statement from them in just

         10  a moment.

         11                 With your permission, Mr. Chair, I

         12  just want to go over just briefly the legislation.

         13                 Just so everyone is clear here, on

         14  August 11th, Matthew Perilli died. The Health

         15  Inspectors were there as a follow-up to a previous

         16  violation. And that is really why we are here today,

         17  to try to make sure that parents have the

         18  information that is necessary, so that they can make

         19  a learned choice, a learned choice, do we keep our

         20  children in this day care center that has

         21  violations, or do we take them out? Do I feel the

         22  day care center has done enough to clear up the

         23  violations that the Department of Health has given,

         24  or do I not feel that way, and should I pull my kids

         25  out and should I find some place else?
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          2                 This is a couple who did everything

          3  they were supposed to do. Everything. They got on

          4  the computer, they got a recommendation. They went

          5  to the day care center. They spoke to the day care

          6  operators. They went there to see other parents and

          7  children for at least a few hours each time, they

          8  were there, they did their research, and the system

          9  still failed them. And that is something that we are

         10  here today to assure that it doesn't happen again.

         11                 The legislation that we drafted

         12  assures that if there are violations, the parents

         13  will be notified within 48 hours. If they're not

         14  notified, it will at least be on the door of the

         15  centers so when you drop your children off, you know

         16  that there was a violation against this center.

         17                 It also allows for the information to

         18  be available through 311. Information is the only

         19  way parents are going to keep their children safe in

         20  this City, and the fact that they may not be able to

         21  get it, is just something that we cannot stand.

         22                 Finally, that if the day care

         23  provider has a serious violation against it, because

         24  of their negligence a child dies or has serious

         25  injuries, they should never be able to run a day
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          2  care center again, even if the criminal charges are

          3  never filed. If they're found to be negligent, they

          4  should not be able to run a day care center.

          5                 Very quickly, a statement from the

          6  Perillis, if I may, with their permission?

          7                 "Having gone through this

          8  unimaginable tragedy, we want to ensure that no

          9  other parent in this City ever has to experience

         10  what we went through. The immediate availability of

         11  data on outstanding violations mandated by this

         12  legislation would give parents information that was

         13  unavailable to us when we did our research. We view

         14  this as a first great step in this City, and in

         15  DRHMS's plan to overhaul the entire day care

         16  inspection and regulation process, and we look

         17  forward to working closely with them to make the

         18  proposed changes a reality.

         19                 Vincent and Maria Perilli."

         20                 Thank you, Mr. Chair, Madam Chairs.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         22  again, Council Member Katz.

         23                 I would just say before we get to our

         24  witnesses two points: Again, that we will do all the

         25  steps, and we will do them together, whether they be
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          2  legislative, whether they're budgetary, whether they

          3  be additional oversight hearings. And given the

          4  interest today, and a number of people who want to

          5  speak, I think there is a good likelihood we will

          6  have to do additional follow-up hearings in the

          7  short term. But I also want to say, we are all

          8  working collegially here, and we are working with

          9  the Administration.

         10                 I commend Council Member Katz for the

         11  legislation she has introduced. I have introduced as

         12  of yesterday a companion piece which focuses on the

         13  referral agencies which are also a crucial part of

         14  the system by which parents get information,

         15  absolutely crucial information, that determines

         16  where they will send their children. And I, too, am

         17  in this boat, having a seven-year-old and a

         18  nine-year-old, having spent a lot of time in child

         19  care centers, the referral agencies must have, and

         20  this is what our legislation Intro. 473 would

         21  achieve, must have access to all City records

         22  related to violations and any problems or any

         23  inspection information that's pertinent from City

         24  inspectors and City agencies, and those referral

         25  agencies must be required to pass that information
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          2  along quickly and effectively to parents.

          3                 So, all of the efforts here are

          4  aiming at the same goal, and we are all working

          5  collegially to achieve that.

          6                 And speaking of collegiality, I want

          7  to thank the many members who are here today. We

          8  introduced some, I would like to introduce those who

          9  have arrived more recently. Council Member Yvette

         10  Clarke, Council Member and Deputy Majority Leader

         11  Bill Perkins, Council Member Jose Serrano, Council

         12  Member Kendall Stewart, Council Member Phil Reed,

         13  and Council Member Helen Sears. We thank you all for

         14  being a part of this very, very important hearing.

         15                 We thank Commissioner Frieden and

         16  Commissioner Mattingly for your patience, and we

         17  welcome your testimony.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Thank you very

         19  much. I'm Tom Frieden, Health Commissioner for New

         20  York City.

         21                 With me is John Mattingly, who is, as

         22  you noted, the new Commissioner for ACS.

         23                 To my right is Mr. Elliot Marcus, who

         24  is Assistant Commissioner, currently overseeing the

         25  Bureau of Day Care and to Commissioner Mattingly's
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          2  left, is Jennifer Marino, who is Acting Deputy

          3  Commissioner for Child Care and HeadStart.

          4                 Safe and affordable day care is one

          5  of the most important challenges facing parents and

          6  is a critical public health priority.

          7                 Affordability, availability and

          8  quality are inter-related, and we'll only be able to

          9  address them by working together with government

         10  agencies, parents and providers.

         11                 Nothing is more devastating and

         12  tragic than the loss of a child.

         13                 On August 11th, Matthew Perilli, in

         14  the care of a family day care home, was found

         15  unresponsive and later pronounced dead. Earlier that

         16  day, two Health Department Inspectors visited the

         17  facility in response to concerns that the program

         18  was unlicensed.

         19                 The Inspectors determined that the

         20  facility was properly licensed but they did not

         21  address deficiencies observed during their visit.

         22                 Two weeks earlier, on July 28th, the

         23  Department had responded to a complaint about the

         24  same operator running an unlicensed facility in the

         25  same neighborhood, across the street.
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          2                 The Inspector who went to the site on

          3  that day in July, found that not only was the

          4  operator not licensed to operate at that location,

          5  but she had 16 children, seven of whom were under

          6  two years of age, with only three adults present.

          7                 This exceeded both the number of

          8  children allowed in the legal staff to child ratio.

          9                 During that visit the Inspector

         10  instructed the operator to stop operating at the

         11  unlicensed site, return to the site across the

         12  street and decrease the number of children in her

         13  care to comply with her legal requirement.

         14                 However, instead of conducting a site

         15  visit to verify that it was closed, the Bureau

         16  apparently relied on a telephone call with the

         17  operator.

         18                 Let me say that one of the things

         19  that was very troubling to me about this whole

         20  incident, I didn't actually hear about it until more

         21  than a month after it occurred, and I didn't hear

         22  about the timing of our inspection until Friday

         23  afternoon, September 17th.

         24                 That following Saturday I called the

         25  staff into my office and I reviewed personally all
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          2  the records in the file, and our lack of

          3  thoroughness in following up on that earlier

          4  inspection, to me was very, very deeply troubling,

          5  and, frankly, inexcusable.

          6                 We found a serious violation, and we

          7  essentially took the operator's word that he had

          8  corrected it, without any further measures. Not only

          9  the parent notification issue, which I fully agree

         10  are key, but as a regulatory or inspectional agency

         11  to ensure that it was resolved.

         12                 On August 11th, the day care operator

         13  was in violation of the law in several important

         14  respects. In violation of the law, she did not have

         15  all of the children in her sight at all times. In

         16  violation of the law, she appears to have had more

         17  infants than she was permitted, given the number of

         18  adult supervisors who were present.

         19                 In violation of the law she was alone

         20  with the infants and children during at least part

         21  of the day, and it appears that the operator misled

         22  our staff on several occasions.

         23                 Nevertheless, my Department had not

         24  done everything it could or should have done.

         25                 I don't think we'll ever know whether
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          2  we could have prevented this terrible tragedy, but

          3  we could certainly have done our job much better.

          4                 I want to also comment on the events

          5  of that day, to comment that we don't really know

          6  exactly what happened. Our information is from the

          7  one individual, the one adult who was there, who was

          8  also the subject of a criminal investigation at this

          9  point, and so I don't know that we know what's there

         10  also. There was something in the media that was

         11  incorrect at one point, and I really want to address

         12  it because it would be so distressing.

         13                 The Inspectors who were there

         14  reported to their supervisors that they heard

         15  playing or noises upstairs. At no point did they

         16  ever, that I have heard, say that they heard crying

         17  upstairs. I just wanted to get that on the record.

         18                 I've taken immediate steps to

         19  completely overhaul our day care program. When I

         20  first learned of the circumstances of the infant's

         21  death, I made several major changes.

         22                 I fired the Bureau Director. That

         23  individual had run the Bureau for 15 years, through

         24  four administrations and five commissioners.

         25  Unfortunately, the perception that the Bureau had
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          2  been reasonably well managed was incorrect.

          3                 I transferred the Bureau to the

          4  Division of Environmental Health, which has

          5  extensive experience with inspections in such

          6  child-related areas as lead poisoning, window guards

          7  and summer camps, I asked the staff member with 30

          8  years of experience at the Department, Ms. Linda

          9  Vassall, to be its acting director. I upgraded the

         10  management level for the leadership of the Bureau

         11  from Director to Assistant Commissioner, and we

         12  posted and are recruiting and interviewing for that

         13  position. And Assistant Commissioner Elliot Marcus,

         14  who oversees very ably many other Departmental

         15  inspection programs, now provides daily management

         16  and oversight in day care operations.

         17                 We've spoken with and received input

         18  from City Council members, Commissioners of the New

         19  York State Office of Children and Families, the New

         20  York City Administration for Children Services, as

         21  well as child care advocates and providers.

         22                 Last week, I met with actually two

         23  groups of leading child care advocates, directors of

         24  child care networks and community-based

         25  organizations to get their input and advice.
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          2                 My Department's responsibility for

          3  day care begins when a potential provider applies

          4  for a license, permit or registration. There are

          5  other City or State agencies that fund or assist or

          6  provide training or food or other support.

          7                 The oversight of day care in New York

          8  City is especially complex because of City and State

          9  regulations. There are four different types of

         10  regulated day care in New York State, only one of

         11  those types, group day care, is regulated by the

         12  City and is subject to the City Health Code.

         13                 The other three types, family day

         14  care homes, group family day care homes, and

         15  school-aged day care are regulated by the State

         16  through OCFS, the Office of Children and Family

         17  Services.

         18                 Day care facilities in New York City

         19  in all four categories are inspected by my

         20  Department, with State-regulated facilities

         21  monitored by us under a State contract.

         22                 There is a table attached to the

         23  testimony that gives some details on these. I have

         24  to say that the regulations are complex, and after a

         25  month of doing virtually nothing but day care, I
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          2  still find it hard to understand some of them.

          3                 There are currently about 9,400 day

          4  care facilities with approval to operate. These

          5  includes 2,000 group day care centers, under the

          6  Health Code about 2,000 group family day care homes,

          7  about 4,500 family day care homes, about 1,000

          8  school-age programs.

          9                 There are additional facilities in

         10  various stages of approval, or which are exempt from

         11  licensure, and I'll mention in particular

         12  religiously-affiliated programs, about 500 of them,

         13  that although required to be in compliance with the

         14  Health Code and subject to City regulations, are as

         15  of today not required to be either licensed or

         16  inspected, although we would follow-up on complaints

         17  if received.

         18                 The role of the Department has

         19  changed over time. Historically there's been a

         20  tension between strict enforcement of day care

         21  regulations, and the need to increase the

         22  availability of day care services.

         23                 The City once had more responsibility

         24  than it does today. Beginning in 1990, the Governor

         25  shifted the focus. He signed into law amendments to

                                                            33

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, HEALTH, WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  the State social services law, and I quote from his

          3  memorandum to "shift the focus of the state's

          4  involvement from enforcement to support of family

          5  day care."

          6                 The law preempted local regulation of

          7  day care in New York City, except for that one

          8  category of group day care centers.

          9                 In 2000, New York State enacted a new

         10  law, the Quality Child Care Protection Act, which

         11  strengthened health and safety requirements, with

         12  stricter requirements for criminal background

         13  checks, training of child care staff, an increase in

         14  fines for violations, a requirement for prelicensed

         15  and registration inspections, an increased frequency

         16  of inspections.

         17                 Note, however, that this increase in

         18  inspections was from a 20 percent annual sampler

         19  about once every five years for family day care

         20  homes, to a 50 percent annual sampler about once

         21  every other year.

         22                 In the examination we conducted over

         23  the past weeks, we found areas that need to be

         24  improved, not only in the management of our own

         25  program, but also in the way day care services are
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          2  regulated and monitored.

          3                 The full report has been sent to you

          4  and is available on our website.

          5                 I'll highlight certain key findings

          6  and recommendations, also highlighting that these

          7  are very short time frames, we're working as quickly

          8  as we can to fix the system, as well as understand

          9  it fully.

         10                 First, we need to improve the Bureau

         11  management. We need to improve policies, procedures,

         12  operations, training and technologies.

         13                 Our inspectors must be cross trained

         14  for different types of day care. In the case of the

         15  August 11th inspection, the inspectors were familiar

         16  with City regulations about group day care centers,

         17  but not with state regulations and that made an

         18  important difference.

         19                 Second, we need a better system for

         20  parents in the community to get information on day

         21  care sites.

         22                 The State's website, which contains

         23  general information about violations, is now

         24  available via our own website.

         25                 We plan to make electronic
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          2  information even more complete and available through

          3  our website and 311. Such information could include

          4  a provider's licensure status, required staffing

          5  ratio, and enrollment maximum and age limits and

          6  violation history.

          7                 We'll also provide similar

          8  information about City-regulated group day care

          9  centers. We're also exploring requiring prominent

         10  posting and dissemination to parents.

         11                 In addition, procedures for letting

         12  parents know when a site has serious violations must

         13  be improved.

         14                 Parents should have much easier

         15  access to information, such as history of violations

         16  and current findings.

         17                 Please note that the City-regulated

         18  sites, group day care centers, regulated under the

         19  Health Code, are required to prominently post all

         20  violations, and in one of the two community meetings

         21  we held, in fact in both of the meetings, we had

         22  providers stand up and say actually we're tightly

         23  regulated, the Inspectors come, they know what

         24  they're doing, and we're forced to post -- one said,

         25  you know, we had an extension cord that was too
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          2  long, we were forced to post that, even though we

          3  corrected it. That's a City-regulated facility under

          4  the City Health Code.

          5                 Third, the process of approval and

          6  renewals of day care licenses and background checks

          7  needs to be streamlined. Providers who want to

          8  become licensed should be able to do so much more

          9  readily and easily than they are currently able to

         10  do so.

         11                 Fourth, we need to adopt a risk-based

         12  policy for the frequency of inspections. Not all

         13  facilities are equal, and some of them need more

         14  inspections.

         15                 Fifth, we need to establish a unified

         16  system for the Bureau's activities. Hand-held

         17  computer technology, as we use in other parts of the

         18  agency, with help inspectors do their jobs better,

         19  and that, as Councilwoman Quinn said, information

         20  that's available, such as what is available on our

         21  website on other inspectional programs should be

         22  available on this program.

         23                 Finally, we need to improve

         24  interagency coordination. The Department will work

         25  closely with the State, will work with ACS, with
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          2  HRA, with DOE, Fire Department and Buildings, all

          3  are involved in the approval process to address any

          4  delays, overlaps or duplication, the only way to get

          5  the more programs licensed just to make licensing

          6  more sensible.

          7                 We've begun discussions with New York

          8  State about staffing, technology, policies and

          9  procedure, delegation of authority and other issues.

         10                 In order to provide complete and

         11  understandable information, definitions of important

         12  regulatory terms must be consistent in State

         13  regulated and City regulated day care.

         14                 Common definitions and better

         15  regulation, alignment of regulations is essential to

         16  make information comprehensible and useful to

         17  parents.

         18                 Right now there isn't even a standard

         19  set of violations that our inspectors, that I, that

         20  our parents can track and follow, and that's

         21  something that has to be fixed.

         22                 The Council has introduced two bills

         23  aimed at improving dissemination of information.

         24  These bills are completely consistent with the

         25  spirit of our recommendations. We appreciate the
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          2  Council's rapid action, and we completely share your

          3  goal of providing clearer and more comprehensive

          4  information to parents and also of ensuring that

          5  operators who have been irresponsible, irresponsible

          6  in the past, are never able to operate a day care

          7  site again.

          8                 No matter how many inspectors we

          9  have, concerned parents, with a daily relationship

         10  to their child's caregiver will always be absolutely

         11  critical to assuring day care safety.

         12                 We have not had time to thoroughly

         13  analyze the bills, but we do have some questions,

         14  and we look forward to discussing those with you

         15  openly and coming up with bills that are going to

         16  work and do what we all want them to do.

         17                 Some of the definitions may not be

         18  what you intended. Some provisions, unfortunately,

         19  may be preempted by State law.

         20                 Information provided to parents may

         21  need to be standardized in conjunction with the

         22  State, and some provisions may require State or

         23  federal action.

         24                 We look forward to working with the

         25  Council, with advocates and other agencies toward
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          2  our common goal.

          3                 Every day working families struggle

          4  to find day care that's safe, convenient and

          5  affordable.

          6                 In the past two weeks we have closed

          7  four home-based day care sites for not having a

          8  license. These closures come at a cost. Parents

          9  pleaded with the Inspectors not to close the

         10  facilities, even though in every one of the cases

         11  the site was completely unlicensed, and no safety

         12  checks of the facility or background or child abuse

         13  checks of the operators have been performed.

         14                 Closing day care sites often means

         15  parents will have a hard time going to work, a hard

         16  time making ends meet, a hard time finding

         17  alternative safe options.

         18                 We believe we're beginning to travel

         19  down the right road to improving safety of day care

         20  in New York City.

         21                 I'll look forward to working with

         22  you, with parents and with the day care community to

         23  make this happen.

         24                 We won't accomplish everything we

         25  need to overnight, but we're making progress.
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          2                 I want to thank the Council for its

          3  interest and commitment, but before answering your

          4  questions, I do want to close with a personal

          5  statement.

          6                 I've been in various roles with the

          7  Department for nearly ten years. I've been its

          8  Commissioner, I've had the privilege of being its

          9  Commissioner for two and a half years. This is, for

         10  me, by far the most devastating event of that

         11  ten-year period.

         12                 We honestly don't know whether we

         13  could have prevented the terrible tragedy, but we do

         14  know we failed to do our job as well as we should

         15  have.

         16                 We can't change the past. If we

         17  could, we certainly would. We offer, on behalf of

         18  the entire City, our deep sympathy to the family.

         19  And we pledge to use the background of this terrible

         20  tragedy to do absolutely everything in our power to

         21  make a difference for all of the children in day

         22  care, in New York City now and in the future. And I

         23  think Councilwoman Katz referred to the family's

         24  approach as heroic, and I would certainly second

         25  that and thank you for it.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          4  much, Dr. Frieden. And thank you, again, for your

          5  honesty and clarity in terms of the changes you want

          6  to make. We appreciate that very deeply.

          7                 Commissioner Mattingly, I think you

          8  haven't provided formal testimony, is there anything

          9  you'd like to add?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Thank you,

         11  Chair DeBlasio, Chair Boyland, Chair Quinn.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: You're not used

         13  to our microphones. Bring it a little closer to you.

         14                 Welcome to New York.

         15                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I do not have

         16  a formal statement, both I and our Acting Deputy

         17  Commissioner Marino are here to answer any questions

         18  that the Council has, but I do want to be very clear

         19  and strong support for everything that Commissioner

         20  Frieden has said, and for his personal comments as

         21  well.

         22                 So, we're here to answer any

         23  questions that you have for ACS.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: To begin the

         25  questioning, I'd like to turn to my colleague, Chair
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          2  Christine Quinn.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          4                 Commissioner, in your testimony you

          5  outlined a number of very appropriate, and I think

          6  we all agree what will be helpful first steps and

          7  outlined a number of other steps you think the

          8  agency should take.

          9                 Can you give us any type of a range

         10  of what you think the costs will be to effectively

         11  implement the changes that you've proposed in your

         12  testimony?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Thank you. And

         14  let me reiterate that what we have found is,

         15  frankly, pervasive problems with poor management in

         16  the Bureau of Day Care. I also must say there are

         17  many staff within the Bureau who are very dedicated,

         18  very expert, very hard working.

         19                 There has been media coverage on the

         20  budget issue, and clearly when there is bad

         21  management of a program, there is generally bad

         22  management of many aspects of the programming,

         23  including budgetary.

         24                 One of the challenges with the budget

         25  has been the State grant which comes in well into
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          2  the grant years. It's hard to plan for spending when

          3  you don't know how much money you're getting until

          4  well into the year.

          5                 At this point I cannot determine

          6  whether there is a need for additional resources and

          7  what that need is.

          8                 I can make the following comments, as

          9  has been noted, as we noted in our report. We have

         10  many vacancies within the program. We're working

         11  very rapidly to fill those vacancies. We had

         12  something like 26 vacancies we've already identified

         13  individuals just in the past couple of weeks, for

         14  about 16 of them.

         15                 We've identified one of the titles as

         16  being a hard-to-recruit title, and we're looking at

         17  whether the qualification requirements are too

         18  stringent, and whether we should make those broader,

         19  so that we'll be able to fill the remaining

         20  vacancies more rapidly. We've already begun

         21  discussions with the agencies that need to do that.

         22                 So, the first thing is to really

         23  disperse the resources that we have, that we're not

         24  spending.

         25                 The second is to look at issues of
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          2  efficiency of the staff because we don't feel that

          3  they're being as efficiently managed as they could

          4  be. And then to look at the need for inspections.

          5  And for example, as we determine as we go forward,

          6  that we need to do more inspections, that may in

          7  fact need more staff.

          8                 The State-regulated sites are funded

          9  by the State budget, with a grant to the City, which

         10  I understand is largely a federal pass-through,

         11  actually.

         12                 And we will go to the State when we

         13  determine what our needs are and say either we have

         14  to fully fund the costs of doing this right, or you

         15  have to do it yourself.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Let me come back

         17  in a second to what the new cost would be, but you

         18  raised, which was going to be my next question, the

         19  issue of reports that there have been monies that

         20  either the Department has that are allocated for day

         21  care inspections and oversights that have not been

         22  spent, and/or there are monies that the City could

         23  have easily accessed from the State that could have

         24  been used for day care inspection, and oversight

         25  that this City did not draw down.
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          2                 So, can you tell us, are there

          3  monies, you know, City monies, that are in this area

          4  that have not been spent? Bad management, whatever?

          5  If yes, how much? And what are we doing to make sure

          6  they do get spent?

          7                 And are there State resources that we

          8  could have gotten, could still get, that we haven't

          9  drawn down and what are we doing to make sure we get

         10  those?

         11                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: There are both

         12  City funding and State funding. For both City and

         13  State funding, any time there are unfilled

         14  vacancies, money accrues, as we know. And that money

         15  has accrued approximately a half a million a dollars

         16  a year, for each of the last four years, on the

         17  state grant.

         18                 Now, partly that's vacancy. Partly,

         19  to give you a sense, the State grant is a calendar

         20  year grant, from January 1 to December 31st. And we

         21  still don't have the signed final contract for this

         22  year from the State, and that makes it very

         23  difficult to, for example, reprogram or even plan

         24  for spending.

         25                 But the City dollars have generally
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          2  been spent with the exception of some vacancies.

          3  There are some financial details that we're still

          4  trying to understand, they're complex, actually

          5  within the tracking systems.

          6                 I think your question is, the one

          7  we're focusing on right now, what can we do now to

          8  make sure that we firstoff spend every dollar that

          9  we have available for programs, and, second, see if

         10  we determine if we need more money.

         11                 This year, because of vacancies up

         12  til now, there will be underspending in the grant.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: This fiscal year?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: This calendar

         15  year, because it's a calendar year grant.

         16                 So, but we have major needs, in terms

         17  of technology, for example, for the program, and we

         18  have already begun discussions. We can't even

         19  formally request a modification because we don't

         20  have a signed agreement yet, but we will request a

         21  redirection of the resources so that in this year

         22  money that's on the State grant can be used instead

         23  for personnel, because there is only two months left

         24  of the year, so they won't fully disperse that

         25  money, that any money accrued would be used, for
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          2  example, to establish the hand-held inspectional

          3  system we've already provided two-way radios and

          4  mobile phones to inspectors, about half of them

          5  didn't have that before. So, we're trying to ensure

          6  that every dollar is well spent.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That switch from

          8  personnel to technology for the final two months of

          9  2004, that would not be a permanent switch, though.

         10  I would assume that for 2005 you would be requesting

         11  more money for the capital, and at least the same

         12  for personnel, maybe more that it gets redetermined.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Now, there were

         15  reports, I'm sure you saw in the Times article that

         16  there was 2.2 million in State funds over the past

         17  five years that wasn't spent. So, is it the

         18  Department's belief that that 2.2 for unfilled lines

         19  was unspent because of this recurring problem with

         20  the State bureaucracy in the contracts? Or is there

         21  another reason why that money went unspent.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I'll ask Andy

         23  Ryan, or is our Deputy Commissioner for Financial

         24  and Strategic Management, and who both oversees the

         25  budget, and whose unit also oversaw that Bureau of
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          2  Day Care report that I commissioned that you all

          3  have to address that budget issue.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RYAN: Hello.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just identify

          6  yourself for the record.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RYAN: Andy Ryan.

          8  Deputy Commissioner for Financial and Strategic

          9  Management. Thank you.

         10                 We're currently trying to tease out

         11  the causes of the underspending. Certainly it has

         12  been generally unfilled positions. It is somewhat

         13  difficult retrospectively to understand the impact

         14  of the late registration of each year's contract,

         15  but we do understand that that potentially has a

         16  negative affect on the ability to spend.

         17                 In general, though, we estimate what

         18  the contract will be and have given authorization

         19  for the program to spend the budget, but over the

         20  last five years we have seen this underspending in

         21  the magnitude that is reported in the Times.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: As you're teasing

         23  this out, what are the indications? What are you

         24  finding out so far about why we've gotten to this

         25  point?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RYAN:

          3  Specifically there have been vacancies on the

          4  state-funded program over the last four or five

          5  years that we have been looking, and that obviously

          6  creates underspending.

          7                 There has been at some times a

          8  request, I think last year for some redirection of

          9  the underspending to OTPS, towards the end of the

         10  year, as Commissioner was talking about for this

         11  year. But in general we've seen those past vacancies

         12  and that would explain a large portion of the

         13  underspending.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If you look back

         15  about how the underspending and understaffing

         16  occurred, how did that happen? Was it, one thing you

         17  identified is perhaps this issue with the one job

         18  title, but there obviously were some other pretty

         19  serious managerial budgetary shortcomings that

         20  allowed this so-to-speak to occur.

         21                 So, I know you've made changes and

         22  upping the job title, so-to-speak, you fired

         23  somebody and you're looking for new folks, but what

         24  else is going to happen so we know, you know, could

         25  the Council receive, for example, quarterly reports
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          2  on the vacancies specifically in day care, to get a

          3  sense of how quickly they're being filled? Are you

          4  going to be getting monthly reports about how

          5  quickly they're being filled?

          6                 And also, could you just tell me, how

          7  many inspector lines we presently have, and how many

          8  are filled or vacant?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I have

         10  instituted a weekly meeting where I review all

         11  aspects to the day care program and also on e-mail

         12  and phone multiple times a day on this program.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: In terms of the

         15  past vacancies, I think it's probably a combination

         16  of factors, ineffectiveness of program management

         17  probably being one of them. There are times when

         18  civil service lists create delays in hiring.

         19                 One of the titles is hard to fill and

         20  I think that's been a persistent problem. We

         21  recently tried to recruit to that title, weren't

         22  able to. We've already reached out to the DCAS, the

         23  City personnel agency, and are discussing changing

         24  some of the qualifications and specifications. So,

         25  it's been basically that issue.
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          2                 The other issue I think to recognize

          3  is that, because we didn't have a final budget, the

          4  number of vacancies wasn't very clear to the vacancy

          5  as a whole, until late in the year. That's unlike

          6  most of the other grants where we have a sense. In

          7  many of the grants, it's difficult to understand

          8  exactly how the vacancy works, but when you don't

          9  have an approved budget it makes it particularly

         10  hard.

         11                 In terms of the number of inspectors,

         12  we have a budget for about 85 inspectors of which

         13  about 65 are on-board, and we have another 16 staff,

         14  I don't think they're all inspectors, who are in the

         15  pipeline to be hired, just identified in recent

         16  times. I don't know how many of those are

         17  inspectors.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just want to ask

         19  one or two more questions, and then turn it over,

         20  but then I have more.

         21                 Just to give us, or to give the

         22  Committee kind of a frame of reference. In my

         23  opening statement I mentioned, you know, the model

         24  the Department has in place for restaurant

         25  inspections, and you referenced that as well; can
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          2  you tell us how much money the Department is

          3  spending on restaurant inspectors and inspections

          4  and technology, and how that compares to what we

          5  spent to date, or what we're spending presently on

          6  day care inspectors, inspection, technologies, just

          7  to give us kind of a frame of reference?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I would have to

          9  get back to you with the spending. We can do that.

         10                 On the issue of technology, to focus

         11  on that for a moment --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Actually,

         14  Assistance Commissioner Marcus has overseen that

         15  program, as well as the summer camp program. One of

         16  the reasons I put him in charge of this program is

         17  that he really has done a superb job with overseeing

         18  inspections, and it took multiple years to get the

         19  restaurant website up and running, and lots of

         20  money.

         21                 One of the challenges is going to be

         22  the State data system, known as CCFS, and getting

         23  that to communicate with the hand-held system that

         24  we intend to put out there, and that will require

         25  State cooperation and I've already told the State,
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          2  including OCFS, as well as the Governor's Office,

          3  that the two things that for us are non-negotiable

          4  are if we determine that to safely inspect, we need

          5  more resources, to provide the resources, and that

          6  they need to be flexible to allow us to use

          7  technologies that work for us in New York City.

          8                 If they're not willing to do those

          9  two things, then they need to do this themselves.

         10  And, so, because we do this under contract with

         11  them, it's their responsibility.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Right now the

         14  spending on technology, it's hard for us to say

         15  because it's been a statewide system. So, there has

         16  been, even the computers are, I believe, purchased

         17  by the State for this program. So, it's something

         18  that we're focusing on.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Do you know how

         20  many restaurant inspectors there are? Just the

         21  number. Just so we could compare that?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Approximately

         23  100.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And what did you

         25  say, again, for day care?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: About 85. There

          3  are 20,000 restaurants in New York City, and we only

          4  this year have been able to inspect them all each

          5  year, which has been an MMR target for many years.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just my last

          7  question, and then I'll come back. Presently the

          8  goal is to inspect day care every other year; is

          9  that correct?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: It's actually

         11  more complicated than that. It's one of the things

         12  that I continue to find confusing.

         13                 There are four types of day care.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: The group day

         16  care is licensed by the City, we inspect those every

         17  year.

         18                 The group family day care gets a

         19  license every other year, and I'll ask my staff to

         20  correct me, if I don't get one of your things right.

         21  It gets a license every other year, and it gets an

         22  unannounced inspection prior to renewal of their

         23  license. So, they're essentially only inspected

         24  every other year. We think that's probably

         25  insufficient.
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          2                 The family day care is licensed every

          3  other year, and registered every other year, and a

          4  50 percent sample is randomly inspected in any one

          5  year. However, just from statistics, if you select

          6  50 percent at random, that means that some may never

          7  get selected, so that is another problem that we

          8  need to address.

          9                 And school-aged care is every two

         10  years and get the pre-permit inspection, and no

         11  random inspections -- and also gets random

         12  inspections. And those are all in addition to any

         13  complaint inspections that occur.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You know, I think

         15  we and the Council would agree that the places that

         16  are every other year, or the random sample model is

         17  not a sufficient amount of inspections, or a

         18  sufficient model to be using, and would want to work

         19  with the Department to change that and make a more

         20  across the board yearly, at least, inspection

         21  requirement.

         22                 Now, with that obviously will become

         23  the need for more people, inspectors to do the

         24  inspection, which clearly comes with the need and

         25  requirement of more money. So, I just want to say
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          2  that, recognizing that if we, in the Council, take

          3  that position, that goes along with it.

          4                 But I am very concerned that some

          5  places are not even getting inspected every year.

          6  And some, as you pointed out, may, in just the

          7  statistical kind of results, never get inspected

          8  over a significant period of time. So, we would very

          9  much want to work with you to look to change that,

         10  and make sure we have the staffing to make that

         11  change real, realized.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I would just

         13  reiterate that the group day cares, under the City

         14  purview, are annually. The family day cares with two

         15  to six children in a private home are less, so I'm

         16  particularly concerned about the group family day

         17  care, which is what this facility was, which are not

         18  annual.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you,

         20  Commissioner, and I'll come back later.

         21                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         23  Chair Quinn.

         24                 Let me start with just a couple of

         25  questions with Commissioner Frieden, and then I have
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          2  one or two with Commissioner Mattingly.

          3                 Commissioner, again, your spirit has

          4  been so open and so clear about changing things, I

          5  can't in any way criticize the spirit of what you're

          6  raising.

          7                 Oh, I'm sorry, one important note

          8  before I do. We've been joined by Council Member

          9  Leroy Comrie. We have been joined by Council Member

         10  Sara Gonzalez. Thank you, both, very much.

         11                 I can't criticize the intent on

         12  anything I'm hearing here. I appreciate it very

         13  much, but I'm concerned there's a couple of trends

         14  perhaps that have existed in this Administration,

         15  probably a lot of Administrations, it may be just

         16  the nature of Mayoral Administrations, and I want to

         17  just push on that a little bit more.

         18                 In response to Council Member Quinn's

         19  questions, do you feel that we not only drew down

         20  the State money that was available to us fully, but

         21  that also we sought out all available state and

         22  federal funding that could have allowed for greater

         23  capacity to make such inspections?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I think the

         25  first thing we have to do is we have to fully
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          2  disperse the money that we're getting. The next

          3  thing we have to do is we have to determine what the

          4  need is. And in fairness to the State they have

          5  basically said you haven't spent all of the money

          6  that you've gotten, so why ask them for more money,

          7  but if you need more money we'll discuss it. They

          8  haven't made a commitment, but they have said

          9  they're willing to discuss that and we have

         10  telegraphed pretty clearly that we think it will

         11  require more staff for the State regulated

         12  facilities.

         13                 And, so, I don't know whether we've

         14  tapped out all the resources we could find, but we

         15  could certainly at this point, you know, with a lot

         16  of things money is critically important, but without

         17  good management, nothing is going to happen. So,

         18  what we're focusing on at this point is fixing the

         19  management of the program.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I commend

         21  you, and especially your personal involvement as

         22  part of how I think real change will happen, but let

         23  me ask you just to follow-up on that, that when

         24  vacancies go unfilled, I'm sure management is a part

         25  of it, but given the critical nature of these
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          2  positions, I assume other factors would have stood

          3  in the way.

          4                 Can you give us a sense? Is it

          5  salary? Is it the type of work, the work conditions?

          6  And what bluntly has caused paying jobs in New York

          7  City to go unfilled?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: There are two

          9  different types of jobs that are the main

         10  Inspector's job. One of them is called the "Public

         11  Health Sanitarian." There have been civil service

         12  lists for those at various times over the last two

         13  years that have resulted in sometimes delays in

         14  getting them filled.

         15                 We don't have that problem now, and

         16  we've filled quite a few of those just in the last

         17  two weeks.

         18                 Why they weren't filled over the last

         19  several years, I can't answer. Why they didn't come

         20  to my attention as unfilled grant hires is probably

         21  in part because of the fact that we didn't have a

         22  fixed budget for the program til very late in the

         23  year.

         24                 For the other inspection title,

         25  what's called the "Early Childhood Educational
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          2  Consultant," the qualification requirements for that

          3  title are actually quite extensive. They include a

          4  Master's degree, as well as three years running a

          5  child care center, and the salary is probably not

          6  commensurate with that. And plus the number of

          7  people who have that kind of background is limited,

          8  and so that's something that we're going to work

          9  very rapidly to change within the confines of civil

         10  service law law, and keeping it legal.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Are you

         12  committed, and is the Administration committed, to

         13  doing a thorough review that could allow the

         14  possibility, the answer that we in fact need to add

         15  significant new resources to be able to pay what it

         16  takes to get the right people for these positions?

         17                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I'm not

         18  convinced that the low salary is the main block

         19  here. I think at this point we're not having

         20  difficulty filling the sanitarian positions, and we

         21  think we're going to try next to broaden the

         22  qualification requirements for the EC positions, and

         23  I'm hopeful that that will resolve the difficulty

         24  finding staff for these positions.

         25                 We've advertised widely. We're
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          2  interviewing several times a week, at least once or

          3  twice a week.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Let me just

          5  hone in. I guess what I'm saying is bluntly,

          6  because, look, you are respected for, you know,

          7  being very sharp eyed in terms of what's going on in

          8  the health system and not sugar coating. So, I'm

          9  asking you a very blunt question; are you willing to

         10  do an analysis that could come up with an answer you

         11  don't necessarily want? I'm not saying you don't

         12  want it because of the substance, I'm saying you

         13  have a tough budget situation like everyone else,

         14  but is this agency going to look from top to bottom

         15  and say, in fact, the only way to fill these jobs

         16  properly, is to pay additional money to get the

         17  right people, that's the Administration is ready to

         18  adjust the budget accordingly?

         19                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: We're certainly

         20  willing to do that.

         21                 I think the bigger, the tougher

         22  question, frankly, is if we find that we need more

         23  staff, are we willing to hire them. And I think the

         24  first thing to be said for that is, that for the

         25  state-regulated facilities, I think it's almost
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          2  certain that we will need more staff, and that is a

          3  state responsibility. So, we will go to the state

          4  with that budget request, once we get clear on the

          5  need.

          6                 In terms of City facilities, I'm not

          7  certain that we'll find that we have a need for more

          8  staff. We may have a need for better management of

          9  staff.

         10                 We have currently about 40

         11  inspectional staff for about 2,000 facilities.

         12  That's actually not a bad ratio of inspectional

         13  staff at the facility. Whether they're optimally

         14  utilized is another question.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So within that

         16  is the question of whether in a more dangerous

         17  situation, whether the inspectors are sent first to

         18  where the greatest need is. That's still an open

         19  question you're trying to determine.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: And how

         21  effectively they function.

         22                 What we found in our other

         23  inspectional programs is that hand-held computers

         24  have been a tremendous benefit. They've made the

         25  work that the inspectors do much more standardized.
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          2  They've allowed management to carefully track

          3  productivity. They've empowered the inspectors by

          4  providing information to them on site, when they're

          5  there.

          6                 So, to us, you know, technology is

          7  not a be all and end all, but it's very important

          8  here.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And let me just

         10  have one last follow-up on this. The question of the

         11  frequency in inspections came up in Council Member

         12  Quinn's questioning; again, are you committed to

         13  doing an analysis that looks at what is necessary in

         14  terms of frequency that may in fact determine

         15  frequency needs to be significantly different than

         16  it is now, and to take whatever steps on a personnel

         17  level that are necessary, as Council Member Quinn

         18  was just saying, the question of, for example, if

         19  there is a hiring freeze in general in the City that

         20  this be one of the exempted areas because it

         21  involves health and safety. Can you make a

         22  commitment to us that you will look at frequency,

         23  you will look at personnel, and even if the result

         24  is that you need to significantly increase frequency

         25  and increase personnel, or exempt this from a hiring
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          2  freeze, that you're willing to seriously consider

          3  those kinds of steps?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes. I have to

          5  say there are certain things that are within my

          6  purview and there are certain things that are not.

          7  Exemption from a hiring freeze is within the purview

          8  of OMB, not with me.

          9                 If we find that we have a need for

         10  additional staff on City regulated facilities, then

         11  we'll have to find the money to do that. And we

         12  would hope that OMB would make more money available,

         13  but given the fiscal climate that we're in, that

         14  might mean that we have to reduce services

         15  elsewhere, but we would not let anything stand in

         16  the way of doing what we see, what we find to be

         17  necessary, to do the job right here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I have one

         19  question for both Commissioners, and one question

         20  for Commissioner Mattingly alone, and then I know

         21  Chair Boyland has questions.

         22                 To both of you, as you know, the

         23  Citizens' Committee for Children has offered some

         24  important recommendations related to the day care

         25  system in the last days.
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          2                 One I think is particularly pertinent

          3  is the idea of creating an interagency oversight

          4  committee related to early childhood care, and I

          5  would think, knowing the work of the CCC, that the

          6  idea is to create something that is very rigorous

          7  that has real power to coordinate and ensure that

          8  changes are made; what do you feel about that

          9  recommendation? Both Commissioners.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: We're certainly

         11  open. We're eager to work with all the parties here.

         12  I think one of the issues that we really have to

         13  address is that in many respects this is a state

         14  show. The state sets the recommendations. The state

         15  determines the funding, and, so, we really have to

         16  have the state involved in those discussions in

         17  order to make them, you know, as effective as

         18  possible.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I agree with

         20  Commissioner Frieden. I'd like to add, however, that

         21  with Deputy Commissioner Marino having been in her

         22  job two weeks, and me having been in mind about

         23  eight weeks, there's a lot more to be said about

         24  many of these issues than we are absolutely certain

         25  about ourselves.
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          2                 But I will commit to the Council and

          3  to the City that we intend to do a top to bottom

          4  strategic review in the next coming three to five

          5  months of child care throughout the City of all

          6  kinds, from the programmatic aspect primarily, so

          7  that we can determine what directions we should take

          8  as a community to see to it that every family that

          9  needs safe, adequate family or center-based child

         10  care, can expect to get it.

         11                 So, we won't know, I don't think,

         12  until the point at which we have reached out to all

         13  the advocates and all the providers and all the

         14  community leaders and as many citizens as we can,

         15  where we will end up with that.

         16                 But I can commit that we are headed

         17  in that direction in the very near future.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I would just

         19  note, given how central the role of the State has

         20  been in all of your answers, it is particular

         21  troubling that there wasn't a decision by the State

         22  to send someone here today.

         23                 The Speaker spoke about this earlier,

         24  but I think when you just listen to this dialogue,

         25  and you're right, this is a complex system, and God
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          2  help us, it got so complex, it needs to be made

          3  simpler.

          4                 But I just don't understand why

          5  people faced with a crisis, which includes the

          6  state, why they wouldn't choose to be here answering

          7  in the same forthright manner you are, I don't think

          8  that's healthy, and I think the public really

          9  respects people who just come forward and answer the

         10  tough questions and not people who don't show up.

         11                 Lastly, Commissioner Mattingly, I

         12  heard you loud and clear that you are so new in the

         13  job, I don't think you have all of your plans laid

         14  out, but let me just flag something, and I'll

         15  respect whether you can give me a very specific

         16  answer or whether you can give me a broad answer.

         17  You know, this problem that we discussed today

         18  occurred, this tragedy, this specific tragedy, but

         19  the other types of problems we're discussing are

         20  where our inspectors are.

         21                 We're talking about the organized day

         22  care settings where we actually get inspectors to be

         23  there, even if it's not frequent enough in the view

         24  of many of us.

         25                 As you know, there's a whole other
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          2  sector of informal child care, and there is

          3  literally no inspection apparatus for it.

          4                 And, tens of thousands of New York

          5  kids go to these informal settings, they're

          6  unregulated, unlicensed, uninspected, they're part

          7  of life, but I'm a little concerned and, in fact,

          8  the statistics we have in fact show that trend

          9  increasing, that more and more parents are turning

         10  to the informal care, and in fact the City does

         11  provide vouchers that can be used in that setting,

         12  even though we don't provide inspections. So, I just

         13  want to get a broad sense from you, is that

         14  something that ACS is going to look at anew, and

         15  think about what direction we need to go in?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Well, I can

         17  give you a very specific general answer.

         18                 We are concerned about the question

         19  of informal unlicensed care. We understand, I think,

         20  that there's a balancing act that goes on in the

         21  public policy arena regarding this, that is to say

         22  parents should have the right to make decisions

         23  themselves about how they get care and where they

         24  get it.

         25                 There is also a question of that many
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          2  policy makers will pose that this is really a

          3  question of letting the market prevail.

          4                 Having said that, I do believe that

          5  as part of our review, we need to look at the

          6  question of whether those two sort of laudable goals

          7  of letting the market prevail and letting families

          8  make decisions for themselves, if they end up with

          9  families simply not having quality care that they

         10  need and all on their shoulders to find it. I don't

         11  think in the long run, in our long-term planning, we

         12  should accept that as the only way it can be done.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I

         14  appreciate that answer very much, and we would like

         15  to, as a Committee, follow up with you over the

         16  coming months, and certainly focus on the issue of

         17  the fact that public resources are currently

         18  supporting informal care, maybe there is a better

         19  way to focus parents on more formal care and more

         20  inspected care in a way that could work for

         21  everyone.

         22                 Thank you for the balance of your

         23  answer.

         24                 Thank you, both, Commissioners. I

         25  would like to turn now to our fellow Chair, Tracy
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          2  Boyland.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Thank you.

          4                 Thank you, Chair DeBlasio, Chair

          5  Quinn.

          6                 Commissioner, your candor is

          7  obviously breathtaking for us, in terms of a

          8  Commissioner being so forthcoming with information,

          9  and remourseful as well, and especially for our

         10  family.

         11                 Piggy-backing on the question of the

         12  inspectors, in your report you stated while DCD

         13  staff observed during their August 11th inspection,

         14  upon their arrival the license group day care site

         15  had an insufficient number of adults present and

         16  certain children were out of sight by any adults,

         17  these violations were acted upon. The question

         18  becomes, how many inspectors, how many inspections

         19  are the inspectors responsible for per day, and if

         20  it's possible for these inspectors to really handle

         21  the caseload.

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: The inspector,

         23  usually it's one inspector, there happened to be a

         24  trainee along on that day, there were two primarily

         25  because it was a trainee who had been with the
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          2  bureau for three days.

          3                 The inspectors were told to

          4  investigate a complaint of an unlicensed center, and

          5  that inspector was familiar with group day care

          6  regulations. That's in a formal setting, a formal

          7  center, not someone's home, who was not familiar

          8  with inspections performed in the home, apparently

          9  was not aware that they had --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Both of them

         11  were unaware or just one?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes, one was

         13  brand new, and then the other who was training, the

         14  senior one, was unaware of the group family day care

         15  regulations, was unaware that he had the authority

         16  to inspect the entire premises apparently, and the

         17  ratio of adults to children, when the second adult

         18  came would have been acceptable in a group day care,

         19  was not in a group family day care.

         20                 So, these are much, generally much

         21  larger facilities. They're in actual institutions of

         22  some sort or another, and more tightly regulated. So

         23  that was a key problem we found.

         24                 I'm told that inspectors are

         25  inspected to visit up to six, five, four to six a
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          2  day.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Four to six

          4  daily.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Again, that

          6  would depend on the size of the facility, the

          7  complexity of it. A family day care with three

          8  children is very different from a group day care

          9  with 20.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: And the

         11  inspections, are they announced? Do the directors

         12  and the day care facilitators know that the

         13  inspections are coming on that day?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: No, these are

         15  generally unannounced inspections.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Unannounced.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: With the

         18  exception of pre-operational inspections where we

         19  work with the operator to come into compliance

         20  before they open.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Okay. I'd also

         22  like to thank you for the punitive actions you took

         23  with these inspectors in dealing with the situation.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I'm sorry, I

         25  don't want to interrupt you. But we took action
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          2  about the leadership of the Bureau. We did not take

          3  action with regard to the inspectors. I don't, it

          4  sounds -- we have to look at the fact that the

          5  inspectors didn't have a written protocol for what

          6  they were asked to do, they didn't have a protocol

          7  to call back to their supervisors, if they got into

          8  a difficult situation, they didn't have training in

          9  this type of procedure. They didn't have a standard

         10  complaint response protocol, they didn't have an

         11  adequate checklist for what they would do when

         12  inspecting a complaint. Though I wish they had acted

         13  differently, I don't blame the inspectors, but I do

         14  take responsibility in the Department and the

         15  program for this.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: I assume that

         17  they're being -- there are steps being taken now to

         18  train all of your inspectors on what the protocol or

         19  standard of complaints are, all 85 of your

         20  inspectors now?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: We're focusing

         22  on the inspectors who could inspect either, who

         23  would respond to complaints. So, anyone who might

         24  respond to either should be trained by the end of

         25  November is the plan.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: November of

          3  2004?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MARCUS: My

          5  name is Elliot Marcus. I'm Assistant Commissioner

          6  with the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Welcome.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MARCUS: By

          9  December of 2004 our inspectors will have received

         10  cross training and complaints, though all will

         11  receive that training.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Okay.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MARCUS: It

         14  will begin in November.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: A second phase

         16  of questioning is dealing with any steps to speed up

         17  the criminal background check process in dealing,

         18  this question has come up several times, in dealing

         19  with the inspectors, as well as the day care

         20  providers, as well as any steps to speed up the

         21  fingerprinting process? And what is your time frame

         22  on that?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes, let me

         24  give a broader comment, and say clearly, the day I

         25  received the report, I directed Mr. Marcus to come
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          2  up with a detailed work plan for implementing these

          3  recommendations, as well as any other

          4  recommendations he finds to be necessary, once he

          5  emerges himself in the Bureau, not to complete

          6  everything but come up with a work plan for when

          7  things will be done by November 1. So we will have a

          8  time line by that, that's an internal work plan, but

          9  that's so we can get a clear sense of how long it's

         10  going to take different things to be done, and I'm

         11  sorry, I forgot your question.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Fingerprinting

         13  and background checks. Criminal background checks.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes, this is an

         15  area that we've heard a lot of complaints from the

         16  provider community about duplication, about delays,

         17  and, so, we're looking a that, there are some legal

         18  issues that we're looking at. Whether there's an

         19  optical scan that can be used, instead of an ink

         20  fingerprint, that might be quicker. That also can be

         21  digitally conveyed so you don't have to mail

         22  anything.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: In the Board of

         24  Education, once this system is set up, if there is

         25  any sort of misdemeanor or felony it's automatically
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          2  sent and streamlined into a system so the entire

          3  universe knows exactly what the criminal background

          4  of the educator is.

          5                 Is there anything set up like that

          6  now? Is there going to be something set up like that

          7  now?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Let me say a

          9  general comment and then turn over for more

         10  specifics.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Sure.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: We're looking

         13  at this. It turns out to be quite complicated with

         14  federal law, with state law, with City. So, what

         15  we're trying to do is, can we make it simple. Can we

         16  make it so that it works and it's quick. And one of

         17  the things that we've found is that there have been

         18  very long delays once paperwork is submitted to us

         19  in getting it finalized, and we're not clear where

         20  those delays have been.

         21                 We do know since we began asking

         22  about them, we've gotten a whole lot of information

         23  very quickly from the State. So, again, I think kind

         24  of better management may well result in a big

         25  improvement, and then we need to see what
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          2  regulations need to be changed.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: We've done a

          4  number of things to try to improve that process.

          5  We're making sure that we enter data into our

          6  database, or the CCFS database, as soon as it

          7  arrives and we're clearing up any backlogs on our

          8  part.

          9                 However, yesterday we did receive 294

         10  returns on our state central registry check. That

         11  clears up a good part of the backlog there, and we

         12  are also making sure that when we send these

         13  requests off, we're sending them by FedEx, and we're

         14  also e-mailing the State so we could know how many

         15  we're sending, so that there's a good transmittal

         16  process, and that we don't lose things in the mail

         17  anymore.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: That's

         19  important. And that question comes up based on,

         20  again, from the report, the statement was there is

         21  no unified data system for the Bureau of Operational

         22  and Complaint Activity, as well as the hand-held

         23  computer technology which we discussed. It's not

         24  used in field operation.

         25                 And in the Commissioner's statement
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          2  this morning, and talking about unifying the data

          3  system, he said that we, the agency will be working

          4  with the Agency of Child Services, Human Resources,

          5  HRA, Department of Education, the Fire Department,

          6  and the Buildings Department, to streamline day care

          7  approval processing and so on and so on.

          8                 So, first of all, how often are you

          9  intending to have these interagency meetings to

         10  streamline the process and why isn't the State

         11  Department or State Offices involved, so we can deal

         12  with the fingerprinting, the criminal justice and

         13  all of them at the same time, if there's going to be

         14  one traditional meeting, or one meeting monthly or

         15  weekly, or how often are you doing to do this?

         16                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I'm not sure

         17  that meetings are the best way to streamline things,

         18  but what we've done, for example, in Mr. Marcus's

         19  shop, year before last we had a delay with getting

         20  summer day camp license relating to buildings and

         21  fire certificates and no objections, and I picked up

         22  the phone, I called Nick Scoppetta, and we rapidly

         23  worked it out, and we'll do the same thing here.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: That's a lot of

         25  phone calls on a daily basis.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: If needed,

          3  that's what we'll do.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Okay. It would

          5  also probably be beneficial to the children, as well

          6  as to the day care facility, if there can be some

          7  kind of written documents stating that these

          8  processes are being moved forward.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Absolutely. I

         10  think I agree with that completely. For the

         11  providers, this isn't, this shouldn't be a guessing

         12  game. Everything should be very clear. This is what

         13  the expectations are for licensure, this is what the

         14  expectations are for infections, and we've done that

         15  in most of our other inspectional programs, where we

         16  said we want you to pass. We want you to know what

         17  we're going to be checking for, and then we're going

         18  to check tough, and then everyone will be better

         19  off.

         20                 Our best outcome is if the

         21  instructional process is rigorous, and the people

         22  being inspected know what they're going to be

         23  inspected on, so they're ready for it and prepared.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: And that leads

         25  to my final question, how many outstanding
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          2  applications for renewals do you have? And how long

          3  does it take right now to process a renewal

          4  application?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I think those

          6  are great questions. I've been asking those

          7  questions. I don't have an answer for you net, but

          8  we can get that information back. And those are

          9  critical indicators in I think the track going

         10  forward over time.

         11                 One of the things that we definitely

         12  want to do is decrease the lag time in renewal

         13  applications.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: And I guess we

         15  will have follow-up hearings. My co-chairpeople

         16  decided that we will do a second and a third hearing

         17  on this particular issue. Especially for our

         18  advocates, so we'll look for an answer on these

         19  questions.

         20                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         22  Chair Boyland.

         23                 We now welcome questions from Council

         24  Member Melinda Katz.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Commissioner,
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          2  thank you for your testimony today, and for your

          3  straightforwardness. But just to sort of put all of

          4  this in perspective again, and so it's clear, I mean

          5  this is an oversight hearing on a whole bunch of

          6  different things, but what I heard from your

          7  testimony today is also that some of the things that

          8  are in the newspaper about Matthew Perilli might not

          9  be what was actually in the report.

         10                 And like you said, that there are

         11  reports of babies crying, and quite honestly, I got

         12  that from the newspapers, and I just thought that's

         13  what the report might have said, or did say.

         14                 So, I guess what I'd like to do is

         15  understand a little more what went wrong that day,

         16  so that we can actually move forward to make sure

         17  that we're addressing the right concerns.

         18                 First off the training. I know you

         19  made a distinction between group homes and family,

         20  group day care and family day care. This is a family

         21  day care center and the inspector --

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Group family.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: This is group

         24  family.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes.

                                                            82

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, HEALTH, WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And the

          3  inspector wasn't properly trained for that aspect of

          4  day care centers, correct?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Right.

          6                 Simply put, both family day care and

          7  group family day care are in people's homes. The

          8  group day care, I'm not sure if I said that

          9  correctly. Group day care and family day care are in

         10  people's homes. Group day care are in centers, in

         11  institutions. And that is what the inspector was

         12  familiar with.

         13                 Let me also say that --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Wait. Before you

         15  go on --

         16                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Sure.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Before you go

         18  on, the inspector was familiar with that. Do the

         19  group day care centers get City money or State

         20  money?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: City money.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: They get City

         23  money?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Wait a minute.

         25  Let's distinguish the operation of the center, from
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          2  the regulation of the center. For the regulation of

          3  the centers, the group day cares, which are City

          4  code compliant, the City funds the inspections of

          5  those centers.

          6                 And in terms of the events of that, I

          7  do want to make clear that the Queens District

          8  Attorney and the Department of Investigation, are

          9  continuing to conduct an investigation of that on

         10  the criminal side, and the details of that I am not

         11  privy to, and they're going to take some time to

         12  come out.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right. I'm

         14  taking another angle to it. I'm actually wondering

         15  if the group care inspectors, they're not allowed to

         16  go into private areas; is that -- am I understanding

         17  this correctly?

         18                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: They're just

         19  not familiar with being in people's homes, because

         20  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So there

         22  wouldn't be private areas in a group?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, I'm assuming

         25  that now, all the inspectors, when they are trained
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          2  to go out, will be trained for all aspects of it.

          3  Not only that but also know the type of day care

          4  center by definition that they're going into.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes, in

          6  addition to our own training, which we're focusing

          7  on, and as Mr. Marcus said, we will start next month

          8  and complete by the end of next year, we are sending

          9  a letter in English and Spanish to every licensed

         10  operator in the City focusing on the key things,

         11  including all children must be within line of site

         12  of an adult, and the maximum ratios, the maximum

         13  number of children that can be there.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And as we all

         15  know, obviously the regulations were already -- what

         16  I'm hearing is that the regulations were already on

         17  the book, that the private area was allowed to be

         18  gone into. But it was true, just the training of the

         19  inspector that the problem was --

         20                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: It wasn't just

         21  the training. I would say an additional problem was,

         22  there wasn't a protocol for responding to a

         23  complaint.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: So, the idea
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          2  was the complaint was it was unlicensed, they went,

          3  they saw it was licensed and they left in 15, 20

          4  minutes. So, that's a system lapse there, and, so,

          5  we're looking at both complaint, the inspection

          6  form, and we've actually all been reviewing a new

          7  form that would very systematically go through every

          8  aspect in response to a complaint, as well as a

          9  protocol for what gets done on a complaint

         10  inspection.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: In a group day

         12  care inspection, and I'm just trying to go on what

         13  that inspector knew that day -- in a group day care

         14  inspection, shouldn't the children all still be in

         15  line of sight of an adult?

         16                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes. But what

         17  I'm understanding, that the presentation made by the

         18  operator was that's my bedroom, that's my child.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Oh, his own

         20  child. Her own child.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: His own child.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: But let me just

         24  be clear, there's no question that the inspector had

         25  the authority to inspect all parts of --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Even if it was

          3  their own child.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: That's right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Is the report

          6  public?

          7                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes, the report

          8  is on my website.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Report on that

         10  day, July -- the August 11th report is on the

         11  website?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes. Everything

         13  -- it's about a 35-page report on the Bureau of Day

         14  Care, and it includes a fairly extensive

         15  case-specific time line and --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: No, no. I meant

         17  what is the process? August 11th came and went. The

         18  inspector left the day care center. He now has to

         19  report to someone the violations of July 28th were

         20  cleared up, or the violations of July 28th were not

         21  cleared up. Who do they report to? Where does it go?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: A couple of

         23  things. They were not there for a follow-up

         24  inspection. They were not following up on the July

         25  28th inspection. They were there responding to a
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          2  concern that the facility was unlicensed, and, so,

          3  they went with that specific concern in mind. There

          4  was a complaint, or a   concern, that it was

          5  unlicensed at that center.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, it was a

          7  July 28th violation and the August 11th inspection

          8  was unrelated?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Basically, yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: How did the

         11  unlicensed issue come up then for the August 11th

         12  inspection -- how did the August 11th inspection

         13  happen then in response to an unlicensed center?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I've had two

         15  different explanations of that given to me by staff.

         16  But our best understanding is that there was a

         17  complaint, and that complaint was actually on the

         18  29th of July. I want to accurate information --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Please take your

         20  time. We're just trying to get it straight because

         21  obviously the newspaper accounts at times are

         22  different.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: There is on

         24  page 14 a time line which goes into in some detail

         25  the different actions and complaints. And basically
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          2  there are two different physical locations, one at

          3  110-06, one at 109-19. At that first location there

          4  was a complaint filed on July 16th. We responded on

          5  July 28th. We directed the operator to return.

          6                 There was another complaint about

          7  that site filed on July 29th, but we had already

          8  been there on the 28th.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: And we made

         11  that phone call on August 6th to the operator

         12  confirming by phone that she had done what she was

         13  told to do.

         14                 There was a phone inquiry about the

         15  109-19, the licensed site, on the 23rd of July, and

         16  our understanding is that that inquiry sparked the

         17  inspection on the 11th of August.

         18                 It's actually not easy to --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: No, I understand

         20  that. So, on July 28th there was an inspection

         21  because of an unlicensed facility. They found that

         22  there was an unlicensed facility. You asked them to

         23  shut down the unlicensed facility, and that was

         24  that.

         25                 On July 23rd, there was a phone
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          2  complaint about unsupervised children -- no?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: No, July 29th

          4  complaint was about unsupervised children, which we

          5  had already confirmed the previous day.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right. And what

          7  was the July 23rd complaint then?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: That was

          9  actually an inquiry. It wasn't actually a complaint.

         10  It was an inquiry about a facility at the licensed

         11  site, but for reasons that are not clear, the person

         12  who took the inquiry couldn't find the site on the

         13  data locator, and, therefore, was concerned it was

         14  an unlicensed site and sent an inspector out --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: On August 11th.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: -- To see

         17  whether it was inspected.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, what you're

         19  saying is that at no time -- so, July 28th, what

         20  were they cited for?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: July 28th they

         22  were instructed to do three things:  To cease

         23  operations at their unlicensed site and return to

         24  their licensed site. The operator said she had been

         25  painting the unlicensed site and, in fact, verbally
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          2  the inspector was there on the 28th, she said she

          3  went there and confirmed that it was being painted

          4  and there wasn't a second site in operation.

          5                 Second, to reduce the number of

          6  children being cared for so that they would be

          7  within range.

          8                 Sorry, here it is on page 11 of the

          9  report. Basically to, the first two, that they had

         10  to stop this place and go back to the other place,

         11  and to operate within their legal limit of children.

         12                 In addition, at that 28th visit, it

         13  appears that there may have been representations

         14  that the staff who were there were appropriately

         15  screened. It was clear in the follow-up phone call

         16  on August 6th that they had not been appropriately

         17  screened, other than the main operator, and so they

         18  were told to use only properly screened staff.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I guess my

         20  concern then is that these two things were happening

         21  simultaneously without the two inspectors knowing

         22  that the other one -- okay. So, basically this is

         23  something that we need to work on, obviously.

         24                 So, this is one of the things that

         25  you are trying to fix and trying to arrange.
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          2                 I guess my last question on this line

          3  of questioning would be then, so there was not ever

          4  really follow-up on the July 28th inspection or

          5  violation, so when are you required, at what time

          6  frame are you required to make follow-ups on that

          7  specific inspection?

          8                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes. As I said

          9  in my testimony, when I reviewed the records, the

         10  day after hearing about this, what shocked me most

         11  about the Department's actions was the lack of

         12  enforcement action after the July 28th inspection.

         13                 By all means, getting information to

         14  parents is crucial, but stopping violations, and

         15  making sure that they're stopped is even more

         16  crucial. And the Department failed to do that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The Chairwoman

         18  of Health just asked me, if you had a laptop

         19  computer, theoretically they could have put in, you

         20  know, Devlin Day Care Center and out would have

         21  popped all of the violations on your --

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: That's right.

         23  And that's one of the things that going to a

         24  hand-held inspection system would be very helpful

         25  for.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The inspection

          3  then on July 28th and then the inspection on August

          4  11th, in what form is it entered into the computer,

          5  and at what form do you see it?

          6                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: There is a

          7  state-run CCFS system, and it has a complaint

          8  module, and, so, they write the inspection results,

          9  at that point they were writing the inspection

         10  results essentially on very general paper without

         11  detailed checklist, and then they come back to the

         12  office and that gets input to the computer system.

         13                 We have moved away from that system,

         14  and most of our inspectional programs, because what

         15  it results in is problems with legibility and

         16  problems with access of the information. What we

         17  want to move to, in as quick a time as we can, is a

         18  system where the inspectors will actually enter the

         19  information directly into a hand-held computer when

         20  they're in the field. It resolves all issues of

         21  legibility and allows us to standardize the

         22  inspection that's done.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Well, I hate to

         24  then bring up the obvious question that that begs,

         25  that if New York City, and my understanding from you
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          2  in the conversations we've had, is New York City is

          3  contracted out by the State to make the inspections

          4  at their day care centers, and that's why the

          5  Department of Health of the City was in Devlin Day

          6  Care Center that day. But we had this discussion

          7  about how easy it would be for us to allow access on

          8  a computer to people because we're the City and

          9  they're the state, but it does beg the question that

         10  if we're able to internally input it on a laptop so

         11  that another inspector the next day can pull it up,

         12  we could, as easily as the City of New York, put it

         13  on the general website so that parents could access

         14  that information just as timely as the inspectors

         15  could.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I completely

         17  agree that that information should be available on

         18  the website. I'm not certain it's easy, and the

         19  computer system that it's on is a state computer

         20  system over which we can't even get management

         21  reports out of, out of which we can't even get

         22  management reports.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right. I

         24  guess we're just trying to figure out how to --

         25                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: But I agree
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          2  completely.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Just one other

          5  thing just to be aware of is, in some of our

          6  inspection programs we have a very standardized list

          7  of violations, and it's very clear, this is the

          8  violation, this is when it was, this is whether it's

          9  been resolved or not.

         10                 Even the list of violations to my

         11  mind has not been adequately standardized, it's not

         12  -- I'm not saying it's hard to do. Inadequate

         13  supervision is one, unlicensed staff is another, out

         14  of line of sight of the operator another, and with

         15  all of those violations we can also come up with

         16  degrees of severity to indicate which are

         17  particularly dangerous to children.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right. I

         19  guess my only point is that if it's easily

         20  accessible by the City, I mean now-a-days on

         21  computers you can push forward and have everybody

         22  have the information usually.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: There are some

         24  confidentiality concerns. For example, the

         25  inspection results include the children's names who
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          2  were there on the 28th.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: So some things

          5  have to be worked out.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. Last

          7  question is, Devlin Day Care was found, I have

          8  forgotten, is it criminally -- according to your

          9  agency, what was the finding?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: There have been

         11  no findings. It's currently under investigation by

         12  the DA and the Department of Investigation.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: But the death

         14  was found to be --

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: The death was

         16  determined to be a homicide by the Medical Examiner.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So my question

         18  is, what happens now?

         19                 Let's say the District Attorney for

         20  some reason doesn't press charges, and I don't know,

         21  haven't spoken to anyone, what happens to that day

         22  care provider now? Anything?

         23                 In other words, I'm more concerned

         24  about a future application, and as you know, the

         25  legislation that I created assures that they can run
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          2  another day care center, and I'm just wondering

          3  whether or not there's anything in the system now.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: In terms of New

          5  York State, the operator's license was suspended and

          6  revoked, and there were significant findings of

          7  operator not operating legally, and I can say with

          8  confidence, I think, that that operator would not

          9  get a license to operate in New York State.

         10                 In terms of other states, unlike some

         11  others --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: What if they use

         13  another corporate name? Devlin Day Care Center is

         14  now --

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Actually,

         16  Devlin Day Care Center was not an illegal entity.

         17  She was licensed as herself, as an individual.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Is there

         19  anything on the books about, and there may not be,

         20  about her forming a corporation?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: No, not that

         22  I'm aware of.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, our

         24  legislation, Madam, Mr. And Madam Chair, Council

         25  members, I think would have to really address that
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          2  if I run a day care center, and correct me if I'm

          3  wrong, on a personal name, I don't know if there's

          4  anything in our law to stop them now from coming

          5  back as a corporate entity without a flow-through to

          6  run a day care center, and I think that that's

          7  something we need to research.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I think there

          9  are a lot of legal issues here that need to be dealt

         10  with so the intent of the legislation gets

         11  implemented.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: I just wanted

         14  to add that, should this provider be listed as a

         15  staff person or in any way involved with the

         16  proposed new center, she would be subject to a hit

         17  on the State Central Registry now.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Basically,

         19  anyone within the corporation, or anyone living in a

         20  household where a family day care is licensed gets

         21  run through the system, and exactly as Commissioner

         22  Mattingly said, they would be a hit on the system

         23  and would be blocked.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Right. But the

         25  question is then what happens once it's in the
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          2  system?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Then you can't

          4  open a day care center.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: At all. Right.

          6  We'll talk about it further then. Thank you.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          9  Council Member Katz. I'd like to welcome Council

         10  Members Gale Brewer and Diana Reyna, and our next

         11  question is from Council Member Yvette Clarke.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Chair, and Madam Chairs. This is a very timely

         14  hearing, and it's unfortunate that it's had to come

         15  on the heels of such a tragedy.

         16                 My condolences to the family, and

         17  it's my hope through our diligence here that we will

         18  see this system of providing child care in our city

         19  revolutionized, because that's simply what we have

         20  to talk about doing at this stage, Commissioner.

         21                 It's apparent that the Bureau sort of

         22  went through a melt-down, and you've outlined sort

         23  of a to-do-list in your testimony, but you didn't

         24  sort of give an indication of order of priority, of

         25  time lines, of actions taken and completed, and I
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          2  know you're doing a very thorough analysis and a

          3  review that is due in the next five months, but what

          4  action, outside of all of the, I guess legal

          5  proceedings that you have to go through, what

          6  internal agency actions have been taken and

          7  completed, and what is the time line for making sure

          8  that I guess any triggers that need to be in place

          9  are well aligned so that we don't have any mishaps

         10  or any gaps that put you onto the road of having the

         11  Bureau set up the way you feel would be most

         12  efficient.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Well, just to

         14  reiterate a few things. We have new management in

         15  the Bureau. We've moved it into the Environmental

         16  Health Division, which is much more experienced with

         17  inspections.

         18                 I've upgraded the position of

         19  director to Assistant Commissioner. We're recruiting

         20  for that position. We've consulted with a wide range

         21  of stakeholders and continue to do so. We've

         22  completed this report in about two weeks.

         23                 We're working with the state. We've

         24  linked whatever information is available on the

         25  State website to our website already. We're sending
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          2  a letter to all operators out.

          3                 We will within the next week or so

          4  have a new inspection form that all inspectors will

          5  use to standardize the inspections that they do.

          6                 We have already begun retraining of

          7  inspectors in critical areas. We already have taken

          8  steps to decrease the turn-around time for licenses.

          9  We're following up on the criminal issues with the

         10  District Attorney and the DOI.

         11                 We're looking at the Health Code and

         12  the requirements on such aspects as the places that

         13  don't currently require a permit. We've rapidly

         14  filled the positions that we could rapidly fill.

         15  We're rapidly changing the specifications on the

         16  ones that we couldn't rapidly fill.

         17                 We've established a complaint log and

         18  a process for tracking all of the complaints that

         19  come in. We've provided mobile telephones and

         20  two-way radios to about half of the inspectional

         21  staff and we're in the process of ordering for the

         22  other half.

         23                 And I've asked Assistant Commissioner

         24  Marcus to give me by November 1 a detailed time line

         25  and work plan for when different things will happen.
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          2  We've already begun to look at the issue of

          3  providing a hand-held inspection system. Building a

          4  computer system is not an overnight job.

          5                 We're looking at reviewing all of the

          6  protocols and making them clear and simple for the

          7  inspectors, as well as for operators and parents,

          8  and the timelines of that we'll know by the first.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I notice that

         10  one of the areas that I guess there's a shortfall

         11  and expertise on, and I'm just wondering whether,

         12  and why this falls under the purview of your agency,

         13  is the Early Childhood Education Consultant, and

         14  have you looked at that again in terms of where that

         15  would be most appropriately housed as an expertise,

         16  because I remember when there was an agency called

         17  ACD, and that is where you would find typically that

         18  expertise.

         19                 Part of I think your challenge may be

         20  the fact that it would not be your normal protocol

         21  to go through the Department of Health with that

         22  expertise.

         23                 Have you looked at how best or where

         24  best to house that type of expertise and maybe marry

         25  it with the public health sanitarian, versus trying
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          2  to operate an early childhood consultant through

          3  your agency? Has that been part of the discussion?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: One of the

          5  things that we're looking at is could we broadband

          6  the title. One of the challenges is that regulating

          7  day care involves what I think of as a pyramid of

          8  hierarchy, is the bottom of the pyramid, the base is

          9  safety, above that is health, things that promote

         10  health, and the top is developmental areas. And we

         11  care about all of those, so it's safety first.

         12                 And, so, there is this challenge of

         13  dealing with the two different types of steps.

         14                 There are some things that have been

         15  done already, but I'll ask Mr. Marcus, in answer to

         16  your earlier question, to mention.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MARCUS: Yes.

         18  We've reduced the length of time from receiving a

         19  complaint to having that complaint turned back into

         20  the office from 15 days to seven days of class B

         21  inspections, and many class A inspections. Anything

         22  that represents an imminent health hazard or

         23  imminent danger to a child, has to be followed up on

         24  within a day.

         25                 In most instances we try to get out
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          2  there on the same day that we receive the complaint.

          3                 We've issued the Nextels to field

          4  staff so that they can communicate with the office

          5  if there is any concern or question that arises for

          6  them while in the field on any type of inspection,

          7  but especially on a complaint inspection, and

          8  they've been instructed to do so, and supervisors

          9  have been instructed to be prepared to respond to

         10  any inquiries that they receive.

         11                 We also have instructed staff to

         12  remain in the field if they are asked to close a

         13  center, and typically what they would do is they

         14  would call into the office to determine what

         15  enforcement action should be taken. And if the

         16  decision is made to close a day care operation, they

         17  must stay there now until all the children are

         18  picked up, and parents are informed, verbally at

         19  least, that the center has been closed and the

         20  reasons it's been closed.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MATTINGLY: Council

         22  Member Clarke, I would add that the Early Childhood

         23  Education Consultants are in fact now located at

         24  ACS.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very
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          2  much, Mr. Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          4  much, Council member.

          5                 Just two quick follow-up questions

          6  from the previous two questions that Council Member

          7  Katz was asking.

          8                 First a broad question. In terms of

          9  the criminal investigation, I know you're not the

         10  DA's office, but just to the extent you know and can

         11  say, has there been any kind of time line given for

         12  the DA's activity?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I don't know.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: They have not

         15  communicated a time line at all? Okay.

         16                 Let me ask you also, on the question

         17  that I think a lot of us are concerned about, which

         18  is the ability of an operator of a facility to, I

         19  don't want to even say mask their identity, but

         20  perhaps to file under different names, on purpose or

         21  not --

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Fingerprinted.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But let me ask

         24  you this: The question is this, as I understand it,

         25  Devlin Day Care is LLC, is a registered corporation,

                                                            105

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, HEALTH, WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  but the license was issued in the name of the

          3  person; is that correct?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Every person

          5  who is the staff or operator of a day care or who

          6  lives in the home of a family day care, a group

          7  family day care, has to be fingerprinted, and that

          8  goes through the State criminal check.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But from your

         10  perspective of doing follow-up, if someone filed

         11  under their personal name, and the center was under

         12  a corporate name, and, you know, is there any chance

         13  that inspections or other activities are done under

         14  different names, and that information is not

         15  cross-checked when you're doing follow-up. I'm not

         16  saying if there was a criminal investigation you

         17  don't have fingerprints and all that, I'm saying if

         18  you're tracing violations, if you're looking for

         19  problem spots, is there any chance that you can

         20  confuse a name of a corporation or a name of a

         21  person and that somehow something doesn't get

         22  coordinated?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Well, I don't

         24  think so. What I think is an issue is day care

         25  workers are underpaid, and day care workers have a
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          2  very high turnover, and it takes time to do the

          3  background checks. And, so, getting people

          4  background checked promptly is very, you know, it's

          5  a challenge, and so the issue is there are workers

          6  in day care whose background check either hasn't

          7  been initiated, or hasn't been completed, and that's

          8  the problem.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I don't want to

         10  belabor, I know other members have questions. I hear

         11  that, I'm trying to just get to one other point; do

         12  you believe currently -- let me ask it this way,

         13  because I know you're in the process of trying to

         14  improve things.

         15                 Currently if there was a center

         16  registered under one corporate name, or one

         17  individual name, and particularly if there was more

         18  than one location was relevant, is there any chance

         19  that information that you trace with one name is not

         20  correlated with information that you might trace

         21  using a different name?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I'm not

         23  certain. I'm corrected by the way the Central

         24  Register is not a fingerprint check, apparently. We

         25  also do a fingerprint check.
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          2                 The licenses of facilities I believe

          3  are independent, so if you want to open four

          4  facilities, you need four separate licenses, but

          5  your name would be on each of those licenses. So we

          6  wouldn't miss your name because that would be tied

          7  ultimately to a fingerprint.

          8                 MR. LOPEZ: Yes, my name is Wilfredo

          9  Lopez. I'm the General Counsel for Health,

         10  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         11                 All individuals that in any way are

         12  present in a day care facility, from the Executive

         13  Director down to the custodian in the day care

         14  setting, or anybody who works in or lives in a home

         15  day care setting, must go through a fingerprint

         16  check and a check with the central register for

         17  child abuse and child neglect.

         18                 The fingerprint check is a check of

         19  criminal history.

         20                 As I understand it, the check of the

         21  central register is not a fingerprint check, but it

         22  is still individual, not corporate. So, whether you

         23  have a corporation or not, every individual must be

         24  screened.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, I'm going
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          2  to leave this with a suggestion, and I think this is

          3  not just about the screening at the front end, this

          4  is about tracing violations and ensuring that

          5  technology and other factors allow you to have

          6  maximum information about each center. And I'm I

          7  think just a problem in any governmental operation

          8  is when there's more than one name relevant to a

          9  specific site, it's typical that there's a certain

         10  amount of slippage of information, as Council Member

         11  Perkins just said, where information under one name

         12  may not get to a central file that refers to the

         13  whole facility. So, I'm just urging that as part of

         14  your reforms that you're looking at, that there be

         15  some mandatory mechanism, technology or otherwise,

         16  that any names associated to a particular site, any

         17  and all names, corporate names, individual names,

         18  that an inspector or an official can push a button

         19  and all that comes up, so there's no chance that you

         20  get a more narrow report than what might actually be

         21  the truth about that individual location.

         22                 MR. LOPEZ: Right. Just a point of

         23  information with our permitting process for the

         24  centers that are permitted, and this applies to all

         25  our permitting processes, if a corporation or a
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          2  partnership applied for a permit, the principals,

          3  the individual principals of that corporation or

          4  partnership must also be listed on the application.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          6  much. Next question is from Council Member Larry

          7  Seabrook.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

          9  very much, Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much.

         10                 Commissioner, this is probably one of

         11  the most interesting, and yet unpublicized document

         12  that I had the opportunity to read today. And in

         13  reading this document, clearly our children are in

         14  trouble and they are at risk every day that they

         15  decide to go to somebody's day care center.

         16                 Could you explain to this Committee

         17  what is a Class A or a Class 1 violation? And what

         18  is a Class B or 2 violation? Explain that.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I have to say

         20  that the different classifications of violations, as

         21  I've mentioned several times today, are not clear to

         22  me. We can have staff comment on them, but --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: But some of

         24  it in statute?

         25                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: In a confusing
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          2  manner, yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I'm just

          4  stating --

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Okay.

          7                 MR. LOPEZ: I was going to start off

          8  by saying just to make it clear, but that's too much

          9  of a commitment.

         10                 In the State regulations, Class 1 and

         11  Class 2 violations are set forth in the context of

         12  fines, so for the purpose of imposing fines, the

         13  State talks about Class 1s and Class 2s. As I

         14  understand it, Class A's and Class B's, are firms

         15  that are used for when complaints come in and what

         16  the nature of that complaint is, and the seriousness

         17  of those complaints, and for the purpose of

         18  determining what kind of response when the inspector

         19  goes out. But Class A's and Class B's are not

         20  specified in State regulations or in the law and

         21  they're not quite the same thing as Class 1's and

         22  Class 2's that are used for fine imposition

         23  purposes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So, what are

         25  some of the conditions that would constitute a Class
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          2  A violation?

          3                 MR. LOPEZ: Well, let me talk about

          4  the Class 1's and the Class 1's for, again, fine

          5  imposition purposes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: The State

          7  regulation talks about violating, they define Class

          8  1 as something that violates a requirement that

          9  harms a child or places a child at risk of death,

         10  serious disfigurement or impairment. It gives

         11  examples of what that might be, that include

         12  inadequate or incompetent supervision.

         13                 It's interesting to note that Class

         14  2's are defined as violating a requirement that

         15  places a child at risk of physical, mental or

         16  emotional harm, and examples of that also include

         17  inadequate or incompetent supervision.

         18                 So, I guess you can have incompetent

         19  supervision, or inadequate supervision, being a

         20  Class 1 or a Class 2, depending on severity, I

         21  suppose. So, that's one source of confusion.

         22                 In terms of Class A's and Class B's

         23  for inspection response, I actually would prefer if

         24  somebody more familiar with the programmatic aspect

         25  of that, since that's not reflected in regulation or

                                                            112

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, HEALTH, WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  law.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: But imminent

          4  danger can be the lack of supervision, lack of

          5  adequate supervision, competent supervision,

          6  correct?

          7                 MR. LOPEZ: Imminent danger is yet

          8  another term that's used somewhere else entirely.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: You know, I

         10  think the take home message from this is it's

         11  confusing, and unfairly confusing to parents, to

         12  operators, to inspectors, and we need to clarify it.

         13                 But, unfortunately, you know, the

         14  reality is what Mr. Lopez was just reading were

         15  state regulations.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Right.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: We don't have

         18  the authority to change those, but we do have our

         19  authority to do our jobs better, and that's what

         20  we're going to do.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: But you have

         22  to follow those regulations as it relates to dealing

         23  with imminent danger as it relates to children for

         24  the lack of supervision, adequate supervision,

         25  unscreened personnel would create imminent danger,
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          2  correct?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: The State

          4  manual defines imminent danger as something that

          5  means that without some intervention it is, and this

          6  is a direct quotation, "almost certain that a child

          7  will be seriously injured or killed within the next

          8  24 hours." Almost certain.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: And an

         10  appendix to that says that the lack of supervision,

         11  or inadequate supervision, as a serious violation,

         12  but does not directly state that this constitutes

         13  imminent danger.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: No, it doesn't

         15  in the State's definition. Unless it's almost

         16  certain --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Here in the

         18  book, page 15.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Right. But does

         20  not directly state that this is an imminent danger.

         21                 What we're saying here is that the

         22  regulations are insufficiently clear, and this is

         23  hampering our ability to do the job right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: But the

         25  reporting of that particular violation, a Class B
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          2  and a Class A, in a Class A violation, who receives

          3  that report, from the inspector? Class A violation?

          4  You have it in your report.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes, the Class

          6  A, Class B are terms that were used internally to

          7  the Bureau of Day Care. The Class 1 and Class 2 are

          8  as per regulation of the State, of the State Code.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Right.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: And one of the

         11  problems that we found was that inspection reports

         12  were not systematically reviewed and followed up,

         13  but inspection reports are entered into the State

         14  computer system, known as CCFS.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Right. But

         16  you indicated here that the level of an A and a B

         17  there's a different reporting and who receives the

         18  report as the seriousness of the inspector's report.

         19  So, what is the difference. Who gets an A report and

         20  who gets a B? It's in your report.

         21                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: What page are

         22  you looking at in the report? I'm just confused and

         23  I want to answer. I just don't understand it.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I'm just

         25  asking what's here.
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          2                 On page 11.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I think the

          4  difference between A and B in the program basically

          5  is that A gets responded to faster than B. So, they

          6  all get responded to, but the program had a protocol

          7  of A responses, A complaints being responded to in

          8  24 hours, and B complaints were 15 days by the State

          9  regs, ten days by an earlier memorandum and

         10  currently seven days. So the only difference between

         11  A and B was the time to respond. So, all of them

         12  were responded to and would result in an inspection

         13  report.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Well, you

         15  have here in the report that it goes, one goes to a

         16  borough and the other one goes to more of a central

         17  office.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Complaints can

         19  either be filed with the borough office or the

         20  central office.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Not what you

         22  have here. I'll find it before I leave, but that's

         23  certainly not what you have here.

         24                 Because the nature of the violation

         25  indicated what type of steps would be taken and what
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          2  actually would happen.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: A and B is the

          4  nature of the complaint.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Right.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Based on

          7  someone calls in and makes the complaint, the

          8  supervisor made a determination of whether it's an A

          9  complaint for requiring an inspection within 24

         10  hours, or a B complaint requiring an inspection in a

         11  longer time period.

         12                 Once the inspection is done, it would

         13  result in a determination of what types of

         14  violations might be there, and whether those might

         15  be Class 1 or Class 2 violations.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I'll find it

         17  in here because it stated that there was two

         18  different places where these reports went, where an

         19  A report went and where a B report went and on the

         20  basis of the seriousness of it.

         21                 And the seriousness of it was that

         22  one of the inspectors, after going to the site,

         23  observed that the lack of supervision was there on

         24  two occasions. One, they went and saw the people

         25  were not screened, and not been screened,
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          2  unsupervised; and then secondly when the inspector

          3  went, you found also that it was only the director

          4  there with the number of children and indicated that

          5  when he felt the lack of supervision constitute an A

          6  violation. So, it gave him protocol to go and check,

          7  because it was imminent danger when he heard a sound

          8  of upstairs with the kids.

          9                 So, I'm saying the reporting you have

         10  here, if it was a serious violation, or not a

         11  serious violation, a serious violation is when

         12  there's lack of supervision, and it's clearly

         13  indicated here that when the inspector went and

         14  inspected the site, the people that were working

         15  there were not screened, and really should not have

         16  been working. That's what this report indicates.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  That's the

         18  28th inspection.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Right.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Right. They

         22  went there, found that they should not have been --

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Actually, I

         24  believe that they were told on that day by the

         25  operator that the staff had been screened, and it
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          2  was only when they returned to the office that they

          3  determined that the staff had not been screened, and

          4  dealt with that in the follow-up phone call.

          5                 I think there is no question here

          6  that --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: If they were

          8  not properly screened, the lack of supervision,

          9  these children are in imminent danger. They're in

         10  imminent danger.

         11                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: No, the

         12  definition of imminent danger per the state is what

         13  I read here earlier, and the fact is that there are

         14  many unscreened staff in day cares today. That's a

         15  problematic area, because it takes many months to

         16  get screened, and because staff turn over in a

         17  question of months there is a real difficulty in

         18  making sure that all staff and all centers are

         19  adequately screened.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: The

         21  inspector also reported that the operator was caring

         22  for 16 children, seven of whom were under two years

         23  of age, at the unlicensed site, in excess of the

         24  number allowed for a group family day care program,

         25  and only three adults were present to supervise the
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          2  children, later finding out that they were not

          3  properly screened.

          4                 There's two violations there.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes, that's

          6  correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Then it goes

          8  on to talk about this level of complaint, an A or B,

          9  and the reason it wasn't taken serious is B

         10  complaint, because an A complaint, you indicated

         11  that it goes to, somewhere I saw it here, to a

         12  different office, and the seriousness of it, and it

         13  was never, ever stated as an A complaint. Lack of

         14  supervision --

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Let me again

         16  try to clarify.

         17                 I don't think we disagree on the

         18  content, and I don't know that the words are that

         19  important, but the A and B don't refer to anything

         20  found in the inspection. A and B refer to when

         21  somebody makes a complaint, someone determines

         22  whether it's an A or B complaint.

         23                 Once the complaint was made, on the

         24  28th, in fact, the appropriate actions were begun on

         25  the part of the inspector, they instructed the
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          2  facility to cease operations, they instructed the

          3  facility to go back to their licensed site, the

          4  instructed the operator to reduce the number of

          5  children in care, and when they determined that the

          6  staff were unscreened, they instructed the operator

          7  to work with screened staff, or to begin that

          8  process.

          9                 As I said very clearly in my

         10  testimony and previously, I find deeply troubling

         11  that we did not ensure that those things were done

         12  with a field visit. That, to me, is a very serious

         13  problem.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Do you

         15  consider the lack of supervision, the lack of

         16  adequate and proper staff to be a risk to children's

         17  health and safety?

         18                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Of course.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: So, and each

         20  inspector, based upon that should feel the same way.

         21                 "Had the inspector been following a

         22  protocol that assured a review of the most important

         23  risk to child health and safety, it is more likely

         24  that they would have acted on the potential

         25  dangerous conditions they observed during their
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          2  inspection."

          3                 So, they had the authority, but it

          4  was never taken serious. And if you read your report

          5  that came out of here, it was listed -- why wasn't

          6  it ever listed as an A? With the lack of supervision

          7  on every given point, it was never listed as an A

          8  class violation. I can't understand it.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I agree that

         10  one of the real problems, and one of the things that

         11  we found very problematic is, no clear protocols for

         12  what their violations are, how they get classified

         13  and how they get followed up, and that's something

         14  that is being addressed now.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Well, again,

         16  I'm not going to take up the time, but I would hope

         17  that everyone will have the opportunity to read this

         18  report, because I have never seen such gross

         19  negligence, and the act of children unprotected --

         20  not that I'm putting this on you, but I think the

         21  Department of Investigation needs to investigate the

         22  agency that had the responsibility of doing this.

         23  This is gross negligence, and it's unacceptable.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Commissioner, I
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          2  just want to ask a follow-up question. We've had a

          3  number, and Council Member Seabrook obviously just

          4  went through it in somewhat of a detailed discussion

          5  of the findings in this report, and I think it's

          6  been very helpful to this hearing and to moving

          7  forward; is there also a report -- the information

          8  that the inspectors took on the 11th, the 11th is

          9  obviously the day in question at the moment, but

         10  this would be a question relevant to any day that

         11  they go out and do an inspection, they come back

         12  with the information that they've taken in; is there

         13  a report or a document that's generated specific to

         14  what was seen on August 11th or any day, specific to

         15  what happened, what they noted, et cetera, et

         16  cetera, and if so, is that document, are they public

         17  documents, and can we see the one from August 11th?

         18                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: There are two

         19  inspections that are relevant here, the July 28th

         20  and the August 11th.

         21                 As we say in the report, one of the

         22  concerns is that really isn't an adequate format for

         23  those inspection reports. They're largely free hand

         24  of what the inspector finds and writes down.

         25                 The parts that include names of
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          2  children who were at the centers, which was recorded

          3  on the July 28th inspections, would not be public

          4  domain. That would be redacted. The rest of it is

          5  FOILable and potentially available.

          6                 I can tell you that what --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Wait a sec. It's

          8  good to know it's FOILable, can we have a copy of

          9  it, though, without foiling it? With obviously

         10  identifying information that you feel is privacy

         11  redacted?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: What you'll see

         15  is that the inspection on the 28th actually did a

         16  fairly complete and comprehensive inspection and

         17  took action.

         18                 The inspection on the 11th, they

         19  essentially were told this is an unlicensed site and

         20  they verified it was licensed and they left in 15 or

         21  20 minutes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Maybe if I could

         23  request if we could get both of those. But also, if

         24  the Department could just pull a couple of other

         25  inspection reports from other sites and other days,
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          2  just so we could get an information specific to this

          3  incident, but also more general sense of what gets

          4  written up when inspectors come back, and obviously

          5  anything redacted that you need.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: What we're

          7  doing, and we have the draft already in the next

          8  week or so, is to have a new and much more standard

          9  inspection form that would require the inspectors

         10  any time they do inspections to respond to a whole

         11  host of --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: A checklist, if

         13  you will?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. And

         16  thank you for getting us that info.

         17                 Council Member Sears.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

         19  Madam Chair.

         20                 I appreciate your testimony,

         21  Commissioner Frieden. You have a lot of candor, and

         22  very direct, and very truthful.

         23                 My questions are going to be directed

         24  prior to 8/11.

         25                 I was looking at your kinds of day
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          2  care, your summary of that, and it's very obvious,

          3  and certainly by your testimony, that this is a very

          4  complex, very complicated and a very challenging

          5  system. My question to you is, because of this

          6  extreme complexity, what did you do prior to 8/11

          7  that you met either with the State and your own

          8  agency having these interagency meetings, to look at

          9  the weaknesses that automatically develop with such

         10  an overwhelming complexity.

         11                 Because I've listened to, and very

         12  much appreciated, what you have done, and are

         13  putting in place, since 8/11, my question is

         14  directed, what did you do to meet the weaknesses

         15  within the system, because you're still going to be

         16  faced, even with what you're doing, I haven't heard

         17  how you're addressing meeting the challenges of the

         18  fact that you're City and there's a State and three

         19  of these day care systems come under the State and

         20  their Health Codes, and one operated by the City

         21  comes under the New York Health Code.

         22                 So, you're still going to be faced

         23  with that. And when you answer that, I just have

         24  another two simple questions.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I think one of
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          2  the challenges of this program has been the kind of

          3  dual responsibility, and that's perhaps epitomized

          4  by the fact that the staff in the day care program

          5  are on the State e-mail system, but not on the City

          6  Health Department's e-mail system, so there really

          7  is a challenge in ensuring that it were able to

          8  effectively monitor the State-funded staff, that's

          9  made greater by the -- there's been a lot of

         10  attention over the last several years to the

         11  implementation of their computer system, and getting

         12  information into their computer system, we're not

         13  able to very effectively get information out of

         14  their computer system. And so these are all areas

         15  that we're looking at very actively now, we've begun

         16  a series of discussions. I think we could say that

         17  we could only improve things by coordinating better

         18  with the State, and we need to see how far we can

         19  take that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Has the State

         21  been willing to, when you have met with them, to

         22  implement some things that you thought might help

         23  you, as well as simplifying the process?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I think in

         25  fairness, if the State were to look on the Bureau of
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          2  Day Care as a contractor, it was not a very well

          3  performing contractor.

          4                 So, what we need to do first is to

          5  improve the management of that program.

          6                 We are in discussions with the State.

          7  We do think there is a greater need for clarifying

          8  and simplifying regulations that perhaps some other

          9  individuals feel --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, that

         11  leads to my next question, because of how difficult

         12  this system is, what did you have in place prior to

         13  8/11 where you were able to reassess exactly how you

         14  were doing things? And what did you do, have in

         15  place where you reevaluated the instruments, the

         16  documents, the applications, and everything to

         17  continually simplify them, because you can be so

         18  overwhelmed with paperwork, and I think that you

         19  are, with such documentation that needs to be done.

         20  I know when I was at the Department of the Aging,

         21  when I started there were eight pages to a process.

         22  We finally were successful in getting it down to

         23  two, and it took a few years in which to do that.

         24                 So, have you been successful in

         25  simplifying your documentation so that it would
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          2  speed up the process?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: We are not yet

          4  there. We're working on it. You're absolutely right

          5  that this is an area that definitely needs

          6  attention.

          7                 There is a checklist for family day

          8  care, it has 181 items on it, for the initial

          9  licensure inspection. There is an application for

         10  family day care, it's 31 pages long, so I think a

         11  lot of this means making it clearer and simpler.

         12                 One of the things that we had been

         13  focusing on for some time is making sure that the

         14  facilities that are out there are licensed. And that

         15  has, for the last three or four years, been kind of

         16  the major focus of the program, to ensure that

         17  facilities either cease operations or get licensed,

         18  but don't continue as unlicensed operations. And

         19  that's really been, I think it's fair to say, the

         20  priority of the program for some time.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: What is the

         22  size of the paperwork, or document, the number of

         23  pages, that any of these centers have to report to

         24  you, and what is it that they have to provide you

         25  with, and at what interval?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: We can get you

          3  copies of information if you'd like. In basic terms,

          4  the application includes information about the

          5  facility to make sure that there are window guards,

          6  that there is fire safety, that there are

          7  appropriate --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That may be at

          9  the beginning, if I can interrupt you?

         10                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Sure.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: But I'm talking

         12  about an ongoing basis. What do these centers, what

         13  do they have to send to you on a consistent

         14  reporting basis? That's what I'm referring to. I

         15  know they will have to do a lot of that prior to

         16  their opening.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: We would have

         18  to get you a complete report later. But any

         19  incident, any serious illness, any change in staff,

         20  any change in facility, any change in capacity would

         21  have to be I think --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: How often are

         23  they obligated to do this?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Whenever it

         25  occurs?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: In other words,

          3  there isn't a consistent reporting by these day care

          4  centers that would be a mandatory thing to do.

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Other than at

          6  relicensure now.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. Well, you

          8  know, that I really have a -- I mean, obviously,

          9  you're working very hard tightening up the belt, but

         10  it seems pretty awful that it's so dependent on the

         11  inspectors, and outstanding violations, and not

         12  having these day care centers meet a responsibility

         13  of reporting exactly that they are continually in

         14  compliance. How many days have their workers been

         15  out sick? And if they were sick, what were they sick

         16  with, that they're coming back and taking care of

         17  children? Are they working on half time, or coming

         18  back?

         19                 In other words, it's the

         20  responsibility of these day care, and the directors,

         21  I would think, to give you a steady reporting of

         22  exactly how they continue to function, and if they

         23  are in compliance. And it would seem that what you

         24  would need for that would not be 18 or 38 pages, it

         25  would have to be a simple document, that when your
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          2  inspectors go out, they would have that last

          3  reporting document, that when they do find

          4  violations, and they find that they reported other

          5  than things like that, it would seem that it would

          6  be a lot more serious problem. Is that something

          7  that you think you could do as you are looking to

          8  tighten the belt?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: It's something

         10  we could certainly look into, the problem that we

         11  have with situations like this is that,

         12  self-reporting procedures like that end up getting

         13  the operators who are very responsible reporting,

         14  and the ones who have problems, either not reporting

         15  or not reporting accurately.

         16                 So, it also ends up, the question is,

         17  is the burden on the operator such that it's not

         18  worth the challenge.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I have to

         20  interrupt you. I did not say that. I said in no way

         21  does it replace the inspector's responsibilities. I

         22  am talking about the responsibility of a day care to

         23  report to you on an interim basis exactly the fact

         24  of what they're doing and if they've had people out,

         25  what were they sick with, because they're coming
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          2  back and dealing with children. That doesn't replace

          3  your responsibilities of your inspectors to go out

          4  there and do their work. That should be a

          5  coordination. It's not to overwhelm you with more

          6  paperwork --

          7                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: It's certainly

          8  something we can look at.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I'm most

         10  sympathetic to what I call a Pope Monsoon

         11  (phonetic).

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: It's certainly

         13  something that we can look into. I would mention

         14  that the State has funded, and you may hear from

         15  them later today, networks of child care provider

         16  agencies, which are there to provide oversight

         17  support, training, to day care providers throughout

         18  the City. So, this is just another resource, but

         19  it's something we can look at. Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, I would

         21  hope that you do because I believe that that

         22  certainly gives you, not so much a paper trail, but

         23  is a continual reporting, other than when the

         24  inspectors go out, and if they aren't reporting to

         25  you fairly accurate information, that needs to
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          2  certainly be looked at.

          3                 Thank you, Commissioner.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

          5  Stewart.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

          7  Madam Chair.

          8                 Commissioner Frieden, am I to

          9  understand that there are 9,400 facilities in our

         10  day cares, and you have about another 500 plus that

         11  are religious facilities?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And you only

         14  have 85 inspectors, who may or may not know the four

         15  type of facilities.

         16                 So, when they go out for inspection

         17  to know what to look for, do you have some sort of

         18  -- now that you know the problem, do you have

         19  training, vigorous training now for those

         20  inspectors?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: We're not going

         22  to resolve the problem overnight. We're in the

         23  process of retraining. We plan to complete it by the

         24  end of December.

         25                 We are focusing those who would
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          2  respond to complaints and therefore might inspect

          3  either type, and we're sending out information to

          4  every licensed provider, reiterating the most

          5  important aspects of safety in English and Spanish.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Do you have

          7  any requirement, do you think there are any

          8  requirements for posting signs as for the number of

          9  students, and age, and the time and all of that? Do

         10  you have signs like that? Do you have that?

         11                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: There are State

         12  and there are City requirements.

         13                 The State license has to be posted,

         14  and that license does state on it the maximum number

         15  of children. In our view it is not sufficiently

         16  clear and that's something that we're looking at

         17  now.

         18                 The challenge is that if you look at

         19  the table in the back of my testimony, it's not

         20  simple. You can't say, you know, no more than ten,

         21  because it's no more than ten if there are children

         22  under two, if there are, then no more than 12,

         23  unless they're school-aged children, in which case

         24  there can be 14. So, that's something that's a

         25  little hard to clearly state, and this has been a

                                                            135

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, HEALTH, WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  frustration of how can we make that information

          3  really clear and prominently post it.

          4                 In terms of violations, the group day

          5  care, which are City regulated, they are required to

          6  prominently post any violation they receive.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right, but we

          8  do it in buildings now for elevators, or for public

          9  assembly places. I don't see why we can't do it for

         10  day care centers.

         11                 With the religious institutions, no

         12  license, no inspections; why is that so?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: This apparently

         14  is a historical artifact that goes back about 45

         15  years, and really only came to our attention as we

         16  reviewed the whole program here. It's a category

         17  known as "No Permit required," or NPR, and I assure

         18  you that we will be looking at that and possibly

         19  proposing changes in that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And

         21  otherwise, you're saying that over 500 institutions

         22  right now with our young children are at risk;

         23  that's what you're saying?

         24                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And we need
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          2  to do something about that.

          3                 When --

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: And any

          5  complaints we inspect in those facilities, no

          6  routine inspection.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right. You

          8  know, a number of time the inspections, if you don't

          9  have a complaint you won't have an inspection.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Right. That's

         11  correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And the child

         13  is at risk and there can be problems that they just,

         14  that just go unheeded, and it may not be as grievous

         15  as what just happened, but it could be other forms

         16  of danger. And, so, I don't think all of these

         17  should be complaint driven. I think there should be

         18  a regular inspection of these facilities.

         19                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I agree

         20  completely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

         22  After the initial complaint and you go out and you

         23  inspect and you find that something is wrong, how

         24  long would it take, how long would it take the

         25  Department to really close down that center, or make
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          2  sure that they do not continue providing that kind

          3  of service?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER MARCUS: Our

          5  inspectors have been instructed to call into the

          6  office to get instruction on that, and what we would

          7  do, if it was a State-regulated facility, would be

          8  to contact them immediately and confirm with them

          9  that we'd like a cease and desist order, and we

         10  would stay there until the center closed for the day

         11  and parents were notified. And then we would perform

         12  monitoring inspections.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: In other words,

         14  the same day.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The same day.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: If it's a

         17  violation that is a risk to health and safety.

         18                 I have to reiterate what I said in my

         19  testimony. We have closed four facilities in the

         20  last two weeks that were completely unlicensed. In

         21  each case the parents pleaded with us not to close

         22  the facility. There is a real shortage of day care

         23  in New York City, so there is a balance between

         24  regulation and support that has to be struck, but

         25  anything that endangers a child's safety is
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          2  unacceptable.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Having said

          4  that then, how long does one have to wait for you to

          5  inspect so that we can get a facility certified so

          6  that they can operate?

          7                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I believe what

          8  you're asking is how long would it take to open?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, you

         10  know, I have a number of folks who are waiting on

         11  inspection, or are waiting on some sort of help from

         12  the Department to certify them that they can open. I

         13  want to know how long that will take?

         14                 If you only have 85 inspectors, and

         15  to deal with all of these facilities and the problem

         16  that we have, I can understand why it takes very

         17  long for any new center to be opened.

         18                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes, there are

         19  delays in the opening of new centers. I don't

         20  believe it's because of not enough inspectors.

         21                 What generally happens is they have

         22  90 days to complete this application package, and if

         23  any part of it is incomplete, the fingerprints,

         24  background check, any of the facilities, the

         25  Buildings Department has to do a Certificate of
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          2  Occupancy, the Fire Department has to do a

          3  Certificate of No Objection, if any of those things

          4  are not there, it ends up being kicked back and

          5  delaying the process.

          6                 There are literally thousands of

          7  places that are somewhere in the process, and what

          8  we want to do is either get them licensed,

          9  appropriately, quickly, or say, you know, it's not

         10  going to get licensed. But this is one of the key

         11  management indicators that we're tracking over time.

         12  How long does it take people once they submit all of

         13  their paperwork to get licensed?

         14                 There have also been long delays in

         15  getting background checks from Albany, and we're

         16  dealing with Albany now and we think that's going to

         17  get resolved.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         19  Stewart, I just need to interrupt you for one

         20  second, then you can continue the questioning.

         21                 I just need to tell folks that after

         22  Council Member Stewart finishes his questions,

         23  unfortunately we're going to need to switch rooms.

         24  The Civil Service and Labor Committee is scheduled

         25  to be in this room at 1:00 and they don't have the
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          2  ability to give us it for any period of time, so

          3  after Council Member Stewart finishes, maybe Council

          4  Member Perkins, since the Civil Service and Labor

          5  folks haven't arrived, we're going to need to recess

          6  and reconvene on the 16th floor of 250 Broadway,

          7  where we'll finish the questioning and begin the

          8  rest of the panels. Thank you.

          9                 Go ahead, Council Member Stewart.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I'm going to

         11  finish up. But one more question.

         12                 We spoke about having every employee

         13  being screened and fingerprinted and all of that.

         14  What about when an inspector goes there, what type

         15  of record will they be looking for, as far as the

         16  inspection? Are they going to just look for to see

         17  the license is posted? Are they going to look to

         18  see, is there some sort of a roster to know the kids

         19  who are there? Or would it be in the same situation

         20  whereby the child could be in another room and you

         21  don't know and saying, well, this is just the list

         22  of kids that are here?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Going forward

         24  we will have a structured systematic checklist,

         25  which will look at every important health and safety
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          2  issue, including the number of children, the ages of

          3  children, the licensure of the staff, fire safety,

          4  building safety, the whole range of things, but

          5  right now it's not as systematic as it should. Up

          6  til now it hasn't been as systematic as it should

          7  be.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And the last

          9  question, is there any way we can coordinate the

         10  State to have some sort of a brochure where the

         11  State and the City regulates everything in one so

         12  that a provider will have that and be able to be

         13  specific as to what they're doing?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: That's very

         15  much needed, and we want to move toward consistent

         16  and clear information to all involved.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you,

         19  Madam Chair. I see the Chairman of the Committee is

         20  in the room, so I won't -- first, I want to extend

         21  my condolences to the family for their loss, and our

         22  appreciation for the fact that they have allowed us

         23  to join them in trying to prevent this from

         24  happening in the future.

         25                 I want to also express my

                                                            142

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, HEALTH, WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2  appreciation to the Commissioner for his

          3  forthrightness.

          4                 I have a few real quick questions.

          5  One, a lot of what we're talking about is kind of

          6  prospective, and it's very promising to prevent what

          7  has happened from happening again. I'm just

          8  wondering about what's happening now. I mean, you've

          9  admitted I guess that there's some risk, so much

         10  risk, and what can we do to sort of ensure parents,

         11  grandparents, et cetera, that the risk is -- I mean,

         12  how do you assure them that this will not happen,

         13  and/or something short of a fatality will not

         14  happen?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: We can never

         16  guarantee complete safety anywhere.

         17                 What we can do is basically several

         18  things: First, to improve the management of our own

         19  programs, so that the inspections are clear,

         20  complaints, every complaint is being specifically

         21  and thoroughly inspected and followed up on.

         22                 Second, we're providing the

         23  information to the operators, reiterating in English

         24  and Spanish the key issues, every child must be

         25  within line of sight, you may not go over your legal
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          2  limit.

          3                 Third, we're trying to get the

          4  message out to parents, because no matter how

          5  effective our inspectors are, parents are always

          6  going to be the people who are there every day, and

          7  would be the eyes and ears of finding out if there's

          8  a problem. So, looking for things in particular,

          9  first, is it licensed? Because there are still

         10  unlicensed places out there, and that's very

         11  dangerous, because that means the facility hasn't

         12  been checked and the staff hasn't been checked.

         13                 Second, is every child within the

         14  line of sight at all times?

         15                 And third, are they operating within

         16  their legal limits? Meaning did they have enough

         17  staff, and do they have the appropriately few

         18  children, and children under two, and, so, those are

         19  I think key messages for everyone to deal with here.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I'm glad you

         21  mentioned the operators, because I was going to ask,

         22  what are we doing to bring the operators more

         23  directly into this reform and improvement, and I

         24  guess to some extent on the immediate side, you're

         25  letting them know what they need to do.

                                                            144

          1  GENERAL WELFARE, HEALTH, WOMEN'S ISSUES

          2                 What are the qualifications for being

          3  operated? Can anyone just walk in and sign up and

          4  they're an operator?

          5                 Is there credentials, or?

          6                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I don't want to

          7  get you the wrong information, we can get you

          8  detailed information. It may differ, depending on

          9  the type of day care. You do need the fingerprint

         10  and criminal background check, group day care

         11  requires some.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Is there any

         13  kind of training from graduate school?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes, 15 hours

         15  of training, specific day cares require -- remember,

         16  the bulk of these, 4,500, are generally women caring

         17  for three to six children in their own home.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me ask

         19  one final question. This is a high profile case,

         20  have we had other cases in which there have been

         21  fatalities in these centers, and/or other kind of

         22  serious injuries and the like?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I asked the

         24  same question when this happened. We do have, it's

         25  not unusual in schools or day cares to have
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          2  outbreaks of communicable disease, and we had a

          3  large such outbreak in the Bronx earlier this year

          4  that we were very involved with at all stages. And

          5  in fact, in that case the day care operator was very

          6  cooperative with our measures to bring that outbreak

          7  to a close, which we did.

          8                 There, as far as I have been told,

          9  were two deaths in recent years, one of them related

         10  to a fire, and one of them related to SIDS.

         11                 We can get you more information on

         12  that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Seven?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: This is the

         15  first I'm hearing it. We'll get you more information

         16  and a summary of them. The two that I had heard of

         17  was one was a fire one and one was a SIDS death,

         18  Sudden Infant Death Syndrome, but if there are more

         19  we'll find out about them.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: How many

         21  deaths?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Two.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, I

         24  thought I heard the number seven.

         25                 But in any case, I guess we're moving
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          2  forward and hopefully we'll be able to overcome some

          3  of what got us in this place today, and I would like

          4  to know finally, in simple question, with regard to

          5  the positions that you have Sanitarians, and what is

          6  the other position?

          7                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Sanitarians.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Sanitarians.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Sanitarians and

         10  then Early Childhood Educational Consultants.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Early

         12  Childhood Education Consultants, which are the very

         13  difficult ones to fill?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And what are

         16  the credentials and the salary?

         17                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: The Sanitarians

         18  make between 32 and 57,000 dollars a year, depending

         19  on level and experience. It requires a bachelor's

         20  degree with at least 30 credits in biological or

         21  physical sciences, or an associate's degree with 12

         22  credits, and as well as five years of experience, if

         23  they only have the associate degree.

         24                 The ECECs make between 47 and 69,000

         25  dollars a year. They are required to have, and this
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          2  is what we think needs to be changed, a master's

          3  degree with a major course of study in early

          4  childhood education. In addition, three years of

          5  experience as a director of a school, devoted

          6  largely and exclusively to nursery and kindergarten

          7  groups, which employs at least two licensed teachers

          8  of early childhood education. And for level two, one

          9  more year of experience.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And there are

         11  shortages in both --

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: No. It's the

         13  ECECs.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm sorry, we're

         15  going to need to wrap it up. I'm very sorry.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just want to

         18  say, there has been a change of plans. After Council

         19  Member Comrie and Brewer ask their questions, we are

         20  going to adjourn the hearing. The advocates are

         21  going to testify at a later date.

         22                 I just want to say one housekeeping

         23  thing for the record. This has been a very cordial

         24  hearing to date. This is yet again another time,

         25  though, where we're being told at ten to one that
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          2  the Commissioners have to leave at one.

          3                 I am requesting for all of my

          4  hearings written notification from the Department

          5  about how long the Commissioners can stay.

          6                 I am shocked that given the

          7  cooperative nature you've demonstrated to date, you

          8  would have had a time you had to leave on a topic

          9  this sensitive and not bothered to tell the Health

         10  Committee or General Welfare staff before this. And

         11  my irritation is not specifically built just on this

         12  moment, but it is a pattern every hearing, and we go

         13  on long in our hearings, we know that for good or

         14  bad it is and it's going to be that way forever, as

         15  long as I Chair, that they will go on long. We need

         16  to be told in advance so we can be accommodating.

         17  Otherwise, we're not going to adjourn anymore, and

         18  if you want, you're going to have to turn and walk

         19  out on the middle of the Council members and

         20  advocates.

         21                 Please, in the future, if you have to

         22  leave at a certain time, we need that in writing and

         23  we need it in writing three days before the hearing,

         24  otherwise we will not honor your request for a time

         25  limit. Thank you.
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          2                 Council Member Comrie.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you,

          4  Madam Chair. I'm going to not ask all the questions

          5  that I was going to ask. I just want to focus on the

          6  advisory team and the composition of it, and I would

          7  suggest to Commissioner, that the personnel that

          8  actually work at the centers be included on the

          9  advisory team, people that have had some history in

         10  providing day care at both the large level and the

         11  small level, you know, primarily the two unions that

         12  are involved in it, and other providers with

         13  long-term history to be on the advisory team, as a

         14  suggestion.

         15                 I would also just want to highlight

         16  the fact that I think we do need to focus on

         17  creating and utilizing larger facilities, and trying

         18  to find larger facilities to fill the day care

         19  slots.

         20                 Every year the Council tries to

         21  advocate more day care slots, but because of space

         22  and the need for finding space, if we could find

         23  larger spaces, they tend to be better organized. The

         24  need for day care is critical. The need is only

         25  going up. If we could get larger spaces, as opposed
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          2  to having to use secondary spaces, I would say, to

          3  meet a pressing need is important.

          4                 And on that note, and in deference to

          5  time, I won't do anything but those two advisory

          6  opinions right now. Thank you.

          7                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And I just was

          9  remiss in not thanking Chair Addabbo for giving us a

         10  few more minutes.

         11                 Thank you. Thank you. Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 My question is on the technology

         15  front. I know under Esther Fuchs and Gino Menchini

         16  we've had this group that's been looking at the

         17  integrated human services, and I know that we're

         18  talking about platforms and confidentiality. And I

         19  was just wondering, I believe there are 13 City

         20  human service agencies. I know that there are State

         21  people who are involved. I was wondering if those

         22  talks are relevant to the discussion today, and if

         23  they would help alleviate some of the problems that

         24  are just huge in terms of the technology front that

         25  you presented in your report and that I'm very aware
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          2  of.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: My

          4  understanding is that that is primarily relating to

          5  contracts management, and we don't have contracts

          6  with the providers who license them. So, it wouldn't

          7  be directly relevant to this, but we, by all means,

          8  work very closely with Commissioner Menchini and

          9  others to try to make sure that we're not

         10  reinventing the wheel in any of the cases.

         11                 This particular technology challenge

         12  is particularly hard, because it's a state system

         13  that we have no control over that we need to

         14  interpolate with.

         15                 And Chairperson Quinn, I just want to

         16  apologize for not having let you know earlier. I did

         17  have a commitment to a group of HIV advocates, to

         18  meet with them in Central Harlem, and so I just felt

         19  I couldn't not do that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's fine. I

         21  don't actually have a problem with you or any

         22  commissioner saying I have to leave at X time. What

         23  I have a problem with is when the officer comes over

         24  and says "as you were informed," actually not your

         25  office, but when they say "as you were informed, he
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          2  has to leave," well, we weren't informed and that's

          3  the problem.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: We'll be sure

          5  to inform you in advance in the future.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. And

          7  it's actually working out room-wise.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The other

          9  question is, just to run through quickly, when one

         10  goes to the field, one takes down information Class

         11  1, Class 2, A or B; where does one, as an inspector,

         12  actually input that data? Is it back in the office?

         13  In the stand-alone PC, where does that actually take

         14  place?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: It's back in

         16  the office, in a networked PC, using the State CCFS

         17  system.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And how far

         19  and extensive is that network? Is it to all the

         20  offices? In other words, can one get on a PC in a

         21  different office to get the same? Is it really

         22  networked?

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes. It's a

         24  statewide system, actually.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. So, all
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          2  of the PCs that are available within DOH system?

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: The other

          5  question is: Obviously other agencies are involved

          6  in inspections, not just your agency, Buildings

          7  Department, et cetera, does that system talk to, for

          8  lack of a more layperson's terms, any of the State's

          9  systems, or your system, or is this something

         10  obviously mentioned in your report, this is not just

         11  unique to your agency? Every time you have different

         12  agencies inspections, it's the same problem, we're

         13  not sharing databases, so I was just wondering, even

         14  within your arena, is that something that is being

         15  focused on?

         16                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Actually it's a

         17  good point, and we can explore with both DOB and

         18  Fire, whether there is something that might be

         19  possible.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         21                 And then the final question is, what

         22  is the hand-held status?

         23                 Obviously it's being mentioned,

         24  involves GPS, base maps, there are a lot of ways

         25  that it could be helpful, what is the status?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: We currently do

          3  hand-held inspections for many of our inspections in

          4  the environmental health bureau. We're very

          5  enthusiastic about them. We think it standardizes

          6  the inspections and improves the quality.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm very

          8  familiar with them.

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Okay.

         10                 And what we're hoping to do is to see

         11  if we can move this onto a hand-held platform in

         12  short order.

         13                 It requires the State to say that

         14  they'll work with us, be able to dump the data from

         15  the hand-held into their CCFS system, which is not

         16  necessarily the easiest thing to do, but that is

         17  where we want to go, and that link is going to

         18  determine how quickly we can move to this.

         19                 We hope it will be in a relatively

         20  short order, but as we know well --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: These are from

         22  the same issues that the State and Gabby and folks

         23  working on the integrated human services are

         24  grappling with. Obviously it could be WFMs, it could

         25  be some of the other HRA systems, but not just about
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          2  contracts.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

          5  much, Madam Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you all very

          7  much for your time and attention.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you, and

         11  thanks to the Commissioners. This meeting of the

         12  General Welfare Committee, Health Committee and

         13  Women's Issues Committee is adjourned.

         14                 Thank you, Chair Addabbo, for your

         15  patience.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 1:14 p.m.)
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